
PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION AGENDA
Monday, July 12, 2021 - 6:00 PM

City Hall, Conference Room A, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

This will be a hybrid meeting, which means that it will be held electronically, via Zoom, with a
limited number of people (up to 15) allowed to attend in-person. The meeting will be
live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel 190.

Anyone interested in making public comment is allowed to attend in-person, subject to
congregant limitations (up to 15).

Anyone wishing to provide real-time, virtual public comment should make a request at least four 
hours prior to the meeting, at publiccomment@newportoregon.gov, and request the Zoom
meeting information.

Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. The e-mail must be received at least four hours prior to
the scheduled meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting, and
pursuant to the municipal code.

1. CALL TO ORDER
Jim Patrick, Bill Branigan, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Jim Hanselman, Gary East, Braulio
Escobar, Dustin Capri, and Greg Sutton. 

2. NEW BUSINESS

2.A TSP Transportat ion Standards (Tech Memo #10)
Memorandum

1

https://newportoregon.gov
mailto:publiccomment@newportoregon.gov
mailto:publiccomment@newportoregon.gov
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989333/Memorandum.pdf


Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Transportation Standards (Tech Memo
#10)

2.B Final Scope of  Work for HB 2003 Compliant Housing Capacity Analysis and
Housing Product ion Strategy (Informational).
Memorandum
Mayor’s Letter of Support
DLCD Direct Grant Application/Scope of Work

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

3.A Updated Planning Commission Work Program.
PC Work Program 7-08-21

4. ADJOURNMENT

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989334/Newport_Transportation_System_Plan_Update_-_Transportation_Standards__Tech_Memo__10_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989334/Newport_Transportation_System_Plan_Update_-_Transportation_Standards__Tech_Memo__10_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989381/Memorandum.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989382/Mayor_s_Letter_of_Support.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989383/DLCD_Direct_Grant_Application_Scope_of_Work.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/989244/PC_Work_Program_7-08-21.pdf


City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Planning Commission/Commission Advisory Committee

From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development DirectX

Re: TSP Transportation Standards (Tech Memo #10)

Enclosed is a Transportation Standards Memo, prepared by DKS & Associates, outlining
their recommendations for how the City should adjust its regulations related to the
construction or reconstruction of transportation facilities, It includes adjustments to the
functional street classification maps, and new maps defining significant freight, bicycling,
and pedestrian corridors. Updated preferred and minimum street cross-sections are also
included in the document.

The memo was presented to the Transportation System Plan (TSP) Project Advisory
Committee at its July 8, 2021. Prior to that date, it underwent an initial review by City staff,
including our Acting Public Works Director and Acting City Engineer. This resulted in some
pretty significant revisions and we have not had a chance to provide comment on this new
version. There are corrections that we will want to see made, and I welcome your
comments once you have had a chance to read through the materials.

As we have discussed, the tech memos are akin to chapters of the TSP, and this work
session has been scheduled to provide Planning Commission and Advisory Committee
members an opportunity to become familiar with the concepts and recommended
changes, and to ask questions or request revisions. The consultants are beginning to put
the TSP together and it may be that recommended changes coming out of this meeting
will be reflected in that document as opposed to another round of edits to the tech memo.

Attachments
Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Transportation Standards (Tech Memo #10)

Page 1 of 1

Date: July9,2021

3



720 SW WASHINGTON STREET. SUITE 600, PORTLAND, OR 97205 • 503.243.3500 • DKSASSOCIATES,COM

TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS MEMO

DATE: June 30, 2021

TO: Project Management Team

FROM: Rochelle Starrett, Kevin Chewuk, Carl Springer I DKS

SUBJECT: Newport TSP Update
Project #17081-007

Technical Memorandum #10: Transportation Standards

This document provides an overview of the transportation system standards recommended for
Newport. Included is a detail of the recommended transportation system classifications, including
multimodal corridors, to support the movement of all people, details on the recommended design
of streets, and performance standards to ensure that the network functions as outlined in this
document. Together, these standards will help ensure future facilities are designed appropriately
and that all facilities are managed to serve their intended purpose.

MULTIMODAL STREET SYSTEM CLASSIFICATIONS AND CORRIDORS

All streets in Newport include a functional classification and proposed supplemental corridors to
help support the movement of all people and help the city work towards achieving the
transportation Goals and Objectives. Functional classifications from the 2012 Transportation
System Plan (TSP) were reviewed to propose new functional classifications for Newport’s streets.
The proposed new functional classifications along with the existing roadway functional classification
are summarized below. The 2021 TSP update also identifies new supplemental corridors for
pedestrian, bicycle, and freight travel. The new corridors identify locations where special priorities
for these modes are recommended and help to ensure the transportation system is comfortable,
convenient, safe, and well-connected for all users. The roadway functional classification ultimately
determines the facility type and cross-section design requirements for each mode.

The 2021 TSP recommended functional classification map and 2021 TSP recommended
supplemental corridors do not include the proposed US 101 or US 20 couplet alternatives for
simplicity. In the event these alternatives are advanced through the 2021 TSP update, revisions to
these maps will be required.

SHAPING A SMARTER TRANSPORTATION EXPERIENCE AN EMPLOYEEOWNED COMPANY

4



ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION

The motor vehicle classifications for streets help support the movement of vehicles by indicating

the street’s intended level of mobility, access, and use for vehicles. A city’s street functional

classification system is an important tool for managing the transportation system. It is based on a

hierarchical system of roads in which streets of a higher classification, such as arterials, are

designed for a higher level of mobility for through movements, while streets of a lower

classification are designed to facilitate access to adjacent land uses. From highest to lowest

intended use, the recommended classifications are Arterial, Major Collector, Neighborhood

Collector, and Local Streets. Streets with higher intended usage generally limit access to adjacent

property in favor of more efficient motor vehicle traffic movement (i.e., mobility). Local roadways

with lower intended usage have more driveway access and intersections, and generally

accommodate shorter trips to nearby destinations.

This recommended set of classifications differs from those in the current 2012 TSP. The City

currently uses the designations of Principal Arterial, Minor Arterial, Collector, and Local Streets.

ARTERIAL STREETS

Arterial streets (seen at right) are primarily intended to serve

regional and citywide traffic movement. Safety should be the

highest priority on Arterials and separation should be provided

between motor vehicles and people walking, and bicycling. Safe

multimodal crossings should also be provided to key destinations.

Arterials provide the primary connection to collector streets.

Where an Arterial intersects with a Neighborhood Collector or Local

Street, access management and/or turn restrictions may be

employed to reduce traffic delay. The only Arterial streets in

Newport are US 101 and US 20 which are also classified by the

FHWA as Rural Other Principal Arterials.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 2

5



MAJOR COLLECTOR STREETS

Major Collector Streets (seen at right) are intended to distribute traffic from Arterials to streets of
the same or lower classification. Safety should be a high priority on Major Collectors. Where a
Major Collector street intersects with a Neighborhood Collector
or Local Street, access management and/or turn restrictions
may be employed to reduce traffic delay.

NEIGHBORHOOD COLLECTOR STREETS

Neighborhood Collector streets (seen at right) distribute traffic
from Arterial or Major Collector streets to Local Streets. They
are distinguishable from Major Collectors in that they principally
serve residential areas. Neighborhood Collector streets should
maintain slow vehicle operating speeds to accommodate safe
use by all modes and through traffic should be discouraged. Where a Neighborhood Collector street
intersects with a higher-classified street, access management and/or turn restrictions may be
employed to reduce traffic delay and discourage through traffic.

LOCAL STREETS

All streets not classified as Arterial, Major Collector, or Neighborhood Collector streets
as Local Streets (seen at right). Local Streets provide local
access and circulation for traffic, connect neighborhoods, and
often function as through routes for pedestrians and bicyclists.
Local Streets should maintain slow vehicle operating speeds to
accommodate safe use by all modes.

Private Streets are a special type of Local Streets that are used
to facilitate access to specific properties or small neighborhoods. Private Streets can include
driveways or private roadway connections that serve four or fewer parcels;’ the City of Newport is
not responsible for maintenance on Private Streets. These streets are not shown on the following
functional classification maps.

Private Streets

RECOMMENDED CHANGES TO ROADWAY CLASSIFICATIONS

Figure 1 shows the recommended functional classifications in Newport. These are recommended to
better reflect the intended function in the movement of motor vehicles. Due to Newport’s unique

are classified

Newport Municipal Code: 13.05.005 Section J

https://www. newportoregortgov/dept/adm/documents/newportmunicipalcode.pdf

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 3

6



topography and environmental constraints, typical spacing guidelines for arterial and collector

streets cannot always be applied. The 2021 TSP recommends maintaining US 101 and US 20 as

Arterials in conjunction with an off-highway network of collector streets. This change recognizes

that many of Newport’s existing Minor Arterial roads function as collector streets rather than minor

arterials. The 2021 TSP also recommends splitting the collector designation into a new Major

Collector and a new Neighborhood Collector classification to identify locations on collectors where

local access needs should be accommodated while maintaining a local street character for

pedestrians and bicyclists. Introducing two levels of collectors will better establish transportation

priorities for different streets in Newport.

The current functional classifications from the 2012 Newport TSP2 were reviewed to identify

locations where reclassifications should be considered. The recommended reclassifications

summarized in Figure 1 and Table 1 will provide better system spacing and connectivity.

TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

US 101 and NE
NE 31S7 ST Arterial Local

Harney St

HWY 20 and SE
SE MOORE DR Minor Arterial Major Collector

Bay Blvd

SE Moor Dr and
SE BAY BLVD Minor Arterial Major Collector

City Limits

SE MARINE SCIENCE DR US 101 Minor Arterial Major Collector

US 101 and SW
SW ABALONE ST Minor Arterial Major Collector

Abalone St

SE Marine Science
SE FERRY SLIP RD Minor Arterial Major Collector

Dr and Ash St

End of Road and
NE HARNEY ST Minor Arterial Major Collector

Hwy 20

NE 31st St and NE
NE IIARNEY ST Minor Arterial Neighborhood Collector

Big Creek Rd

City Limits and NE
NE AVERY ST Collector Major Collector

73rd S

2 Newport Transportation System Plan, 2012.

https ://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Planning/TPOD/tsp/city/city_of_newport_tsp_20 12. pdf

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS * JUNE 2021 4

7



TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

NE Avery St and
NE 73RD ST

US 101
Collector Major Collector

NW Oceanview St
NW/NE 11TH ST

and NE Eads
Collector Major Collector

NW Oceanview Dr
NW 15TH ST Collector Major Collector

and US 101

NW 11th St and SW
NW/SW NYE ST 2nd Collector Major Collector

NE 12th St and NE
NE BENTON ST 3rd St

Collector Major Collector

SE COOS ST
NE 3 St and SE

Collector Major Collector

SE Coos St and SE
SE 2ND ST Collector Major Collector

Benton St

SW 2nd St and SW
SW 7TH STREET Collector Major Collector

Hurbert St

SE 2nd s and SW
SE/SW 10TH ST Collector Major Collector

Angle St

4th s and SE Bay
SE FOGARTY ST Collector Major Collector

Blvd

W Olive St and SW
SW ELIZABETH ST Collector Major Collector

Bayler St

SE Ferry Slip Rd
ASH ST

and SE 40th Collector Major Collector

SE 40TH ST/SE HARBOR US 101 and SE
Collector Major Collector

DRIVE College Way

US 101 and End of
SE 62ND PL Collector Major Collector

Road

SW 9TH ST
SW Angle St and

Collector Major Collector

US 101 and SW
SW NATE RLIN DR Collector Major Collector

Bay St

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 5

8



TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

SW Naterlin Dr and
SW BAY ST Collector Major Collector

SW Bay Blvd

SW Bay St and SE
SW BAY BLVD Collector Major Collector

Moore Dr

NW Nye St and US
NW 6TH ST Collector Major Collector

101

US 101 and NE
NE 6TH ST Collector Major Collector

Benton St

NW Nye St and US
NW 3R0 ST Collector Major Collector

101

NE Eads St and NE
NE 3R0 ST Collector Major Collector

Harney St

NE Harney St and
NE YAQUIRA HEIGHTS DR Collector Major Collector

US 101

SW St and SW
SW CANYON WAY Collector Major Collector

Fall St

SW l0’’ St and SW
SW HURBERT ST Collector Major Collector7th

SW Canyon Way
SW FALL ST Collector Major Collector

and SW Bay Blvd

SE Ferry Slid Rd
SE 35TH ST Collector Major Collector

and End of Road

US 101 and NW
60TH ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

Gladys St

55TH ST 58th St and US 101 Collector Neighborhood Collector

US 101 and NE
NE 36TH ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

Harney St

US 101 and NW
NW OCEANVIEW ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

12th S

NW Oceanview St
NW EDENVIEW WAY Collector Neighborhood Collector

and NW 20th St

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 6

9



TABLE 1 RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

NW Edenview way
NW/NE 20TH ST and NE Crestview Collector Neighborhood Collector

P1

NW 12th St and NW
NW SPRING ST 8th Collector Neighborhood Collector

NW 8TH ST
NW Spring St and

Collector Neighborhood Collector
NW Coast St

NW NYE ST
NW 15th St and NW

Collector Neighborhood Collector

NE 12TH ST
US 101 and NE

Collector Neighborhood Collector
Eads St

12th Street and
NE EADS ST Collector Neighborhood Street

Hwy 20

NE Benton St and
NE 61H ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

NE Eads St

NW 6TH ST
NW Coast St and

Collector Neighborhood Collector
NW Nye St

NW 3RD ST
NW Nye St and NW

Collector Neighborhood Collector

W OLIVE ST
US 101 and SW

Collector Neighborhood Collector
Elizabeth St

SW Hurbert St and
SW 7 ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

SW Bayley St

SW 7th St and SW
SW HURBERT ST

2nd St
Collector Neighborhood Collector

SW 6 St and SW
SW ABBEY ST 11th St

Collector Neighborhood Collector

SW 11th St and SW
SW HARBOR WAY 13th St

Collector Neighborhood Collector

SW 13TH ST
SW Harbor Way

Collector Neighborhood Collector
and SW Bay St

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 7

10



TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

NW ll’ St and SW
NW COAST ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

2nd S

SW Elizabeth St
SW 2ND ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

and SW Nye St

NE Eads St and NE
NE 7TH ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

7th Dr

NE 7th Dr and End
NE 6TH ST Collector Neighborhood Collector

of Road

SW 10th St and SW
SW HARTFIELD DR Collector Neighborhood Collector

Bay Blvd

NW Gladys St and
60TH ST Collector Local

NW Biggs St

NW 60th St and
NW BIGGS ST Collector Local

NW 55th S

NW 15th St and NW
NW NYE ST Collector Local16th S

NE 11th St and NE
NE BENTON ST Collector Local

12th St

US 101 and Eads
NE 1ST ST Collector Local

Street

NW Nye St and SW
SW 2ND ST Collector Local

Angle St

SW ALDER ST/SW NEFF SW 2nd s and US
Collector Local

WAY 101

US 101 and End of
SE 50TH ST/SE 50TH PL Collector Local

road

SE Fogarty St and
SE 4TH ST Collector Local

SE Harney St

SE 4th 5 and SE
SE HARNEY ST Collector Local2nd S

SE Harney St and
SE 2ND ST Collector Local

SE Moore Dr

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 8

11



SW GOVERNMENT ST Local Major Collector

TABLE 1 RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

US 101 and SE
SE 32N0 ST Collector Local

Ferry Shp Rd

Hwy 20 and SE 4th

SE FOGARTY ST st Local Major Collector

SW Bayler St and
SW ELIZABETH ST Local Major Collector

SW Government St

SW Elizabeth St
and Yaquina Bay

State Park

SW Elizabeth St
YAQUINA BAY STATE PARK Local Major Collector

and SW Naterlin Dr

NW 60th St and
NW GLADYS ST

NW 55th Local Neighborhood Collector

55TH ST Pinery and 58’ St Local Neighborhood Collector

NE Avery St and
NE 71ST Local Neighborhood Collector

Iron Mountain Rd

NW 12TH ST
NW NyeStand US

Local Neighborhood Collector

US 101 and End of
NW 77TH ST Local Private

Road

NE Avery St and
NE 70TH ST/NE 70TH ST Local Private

End of Road

US 101 and End of
NW 68TH ST Local Private

Road

NE 54th St and
NE WINDHILL DR Local Private

Evergreen Ln

NE 54h s and End
EVERGREEN LN Local Private

of Road

Evergreen Ln and
NE 56TH ST 57th Local Private

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 9

12



TABLE 1 RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

Evergreen Ln and
Local PrivateNE 57TH ST

NE 56th St

Evergreen Ln and
NE 55TH ST Local Private

NE 54th St

NE 55th St and
NE 54TH ST Local Private

Evergreen Ln

NE Deer Ln and
NE 58TH ST/NE 5$TH CT Local Private

End of Road

End of Rd and NE
NE DEER LN Local Private58th St

NE Deer Ln and
NE 6O CT Local Private

Evergreen Ln

NE Deer Ln and
NE 59TH ST Local Private

End of Road

Evergreen Ln and
NE 60TH ST Local Private

NE Deer Ln

Evergreen Ln and
NE 61ST ST Local Private

NE Deer Ln

NE Deer Ln and
NE 62N0 ST Local Private

End of Rd

NE 31St and NE
NE 32N0 ST Local Private

Douglas St

NE 32 St and NE
NE DOUGLAS ST Local Private35th S

NE 32r,d St and NE
NE COOS ST Local Private35th

NE 32nd St and NE
NE BENTON ST Local Private35th St

NE Benton St and
NE 33R0 ST/NE 33R0 DR Local Private

NE Avery St

NE 33rd St and NE
NE AVERY ST Local Private35th S

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 10

13



TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

NE Douglas St and
NE 35TH ST Local Private

End of Road

NW CHEROKEE LN
NW Wade Way and

Local Private
End of Road

NW 42ND ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW 43RD ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW 44TH ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW 46TH ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW 48TH ST
End of Road and

Local Private

NW Oceanview Dr
NW 33 ST Local Private

and End of Road

US 101 and End of
NE 47TH ST Local Private

Road

NE 50Th ST
US 101 and End of

Local Private

US 101 ad SW
SW 62ND ST Local Private

Arbor Dr

SW ARBOR DR
End of Road and

Local Private
End of Road

SW 60TH LOOP
SW Arbor Dr and

Local Private
End of Road

SW Arbor Dr and
SW 59TH ST Local Private

End of Road

SW Arbor Dr and
SW 58TH ST Local Private

SW Cupola Dr

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 11

14



TABLE 1: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION CHANGES

EXISTING RECOMMENDED
ROADWAY EXTENTS FUNCTIONAL FUNCTIONAL

CLASSIFICATION CLASSIFICATION

SW BARNACLE CT
SW 58th St and

Local Private
End of Road

SW 61ST ST
End of Road and

Local Private
SW Cupola Dr

SW CUPOLA DR
SW 61st and End

Local Private
of Road

SE DOGWOOD ST
SE 35th St and

Local Private
End of Road

SW ANCHOR WAY
US 101 and End of

Local Private
Road

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 12

15



FIGURE 1A: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - AGATE BEACH

r

Ii

— Principal Arterial

Major Collector

Neighborhood
Collector
Local
Private
Proposed
Major Collector

Proposed
Neighborhood
Collector

Newport UGS
Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 13

16



FIGURE 1B: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - OCEANVIEW/HARNEY

— Pnncipel Arterial

— Major Collector

— Neighborhood
Collector
Local
Private
Proposed
Major Collector

Proposed
Neighborhood
Collector
Newport UGB
Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

I.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 14

17



FIGURE 1C: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - DOWNTOWN

F

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2D21

Principal Arterial

Major Collector

Neighborhood
Collector
Local
Private
Proposed
Major Collector
Proposed
Neighborhood
Collector

Newport UGS
Newport City Umite

Local Street

Water

15

18



FIGURE ID: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - EAST NEWPORT

— Principal Arterial

Major Collector

— Neighborhood
Collector

— Local
— Private

— Proposed
Major Collector

Proposed
Neighborhood
Collector

Newport UGS

Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

YAQUINA
ESTUARY

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 16

19



FIGURE 1E: RECOMMENDED ROADWAY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION - SOUTH BEACH

Principal Arterial

Major Collector

Neighborhood
Collector
Local
Private
Proposed
Major Collector

Proposed
Neighborhood
Collector

Newport UGB
Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

— — —Miles
0 0.09 0,18

1’

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • )UNE 2021 17

20



FREIGHT AND TRUCK CORRIDORS

Newport currently has two designated statewide freight routes. US 101 (north of US 20) is a

National Network freight route while US 20 is a designated freight route in the Oregon Highway

Plan (OHP). The National Network designates a set of highways based on geometric specifications

(e.g., 12 feet travel lanes) specifically for use by large trucks while the OHP identifies freight routes

based on the tonnage carried. Both of these corridors are also identified freight reduction review

routes that requires the Mobility Advisory Committee to review and approve proposed changes to

any reduction in the vehicle carrying capacity of these routes.3 US 101 south of US 20 is not a

National Network freight route, OHP freight route, or reduction review route.

It is also recommended that the city identify local truck routes to supplement the statewide

system. The proposed local network, summarized in Figure 2, includes NE 73rd Street, NE Avery

Street, NE 36’ Street, NE Harney Street, SW/E Bay Boulevard, SE Moore Drive, Yaquina Bay Road,

US 101 (south of US 20), SE Marine Science Drive, SE Ferry Slip Road, SE 35th Street, and the

future extensions of SE 50th Street and SE 62nd Street.

Newport will benefit from ensuring that its truck routes are designed to accommodate the needs of

industrial and commercial activity. Establishing local truck routes that connect industrial areas with

the state highway system and implementing freight-specific design treatments makes these routes

more desirable for freight travel which can protect residential neighborhoods from freight traffic.

Having designated freight routes will help the city better coordinate and improve its efforts

regarding both freight and non-freight transportation system users, including the following:

• Roadway and Intersection Improvements can be designed for freight vehicles with
adjustments for turn radii, sight distance, lane width, turn pocket lengths, and pavement
design. Designated local trucks routes should provide wider travel lanes (i.e., 12 feet travel
lanes). The intersection/roadway geometry and pavement design should also accommodate
turning movements or loads from the identified design vehicle and be consistent with city code.

• Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements — such as protected or separated bike facilities,
enhanced pedestrian crossings, and other safety improvements — can be identified to reduce
freight impacts to other road users, particularly along bikeways and walkways.

• Roadway Durability can be increased by using concrete instead of asphalt in areas with
significant freight traffic.

• Coordination with Businesses and Adjacent Jurisdictions can ensure that local and
regional freight traffic uses Newport’s freight routes to travel within the City.

Freight reduction review routes are governed by ORS 366.215. Changes to the horizontal or vertical clearance of the

roadway are considered to reduce vehicle carrying capacity. More information on freight reduction review routes is

available here: https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Planning/Documents/ORS_366.215_Implementation_Guidance.pdf

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 18

21



NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 19

FIGURE 2A: NEWPORT FREIGHT NETWORK - AGATE BEACH

Oregon Highway Plan
or National Network
Freight Route
Local Freight Route

Newport UCIB
Newport City Limits
Local Street
Water

22



FIGURE 2B: NEWPORT FREIGHT NETWORK - OCEANVIEW/HARNEY

— Oregon Highway Plan
or National Network
Freight Roite

— Local Freight Route

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 20

23



FIGURE 2C: NEWPORT FREIGHT NETWORK - DOWNTOWN

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 21

24



FIGURE 20: NEWPORT FREIGHT NETWORK - EAST NEWPORT

.*1

— Oregon Highway Plan
or National Network
Freight Route
Local Freight Route

Newport USE

Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

_._—
o o.i 0.2

YAOUINA
ESTUARY

ha

Maxar

NEWPORT TSP UPOAIE • TRANSPORTATION STANOAROS • JUNE 2021 22

25



I
f

LU1

ri L1j

23

FIGURE 2E: NEWPORT FREIGHT NETWORK - SOUTH BEACH

— Oregon Highway Plan
or National Network
Freight Route
Local Freight Route

Newport UG8
Newport City Limits

Local Street

Water

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

26



PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS

Identifying pedestrian corridors helps to support pedestrian movement and access to adjacent land

use by identifying priority routes that connect popular destinations where pedestrian travel should

be prioritized. The pedestrian corridors are applied to prioritize sidewalk infill projects and to

determine the appropriate (i.e., preferred or acceptable) sidewalk configuration in constrained

roadway conditions. Figure 3 shows the recommended pedestrian corridors in Newport, including

Major Pedestrian streets and Neighborhood Pedestrian streets. All other streets are Local

Pedestrian streets.

MAJOR PEDESTRIAN STREET

A Major Pedestrian street includes the most important corridors for pedestrian travel that link

different parts of the city and provide access to Newport’s existing attractions (e.g., Nye Beach,

Bayfront). These streets should include safe, convenient, and attractive facilities for pedestrians.

NEIGHBORHOOD PEDESTRIAN STREET

A Neighborhood Pedestrian street includes those connecting to Major Pedestrian streets and those

providing access to schools, pedestrian trails, parks, open spaces, and other significant

destinations. These streets may include safe, convenient, and attractive facilities for pedestrians.

LOCAL PEDESTRIAN STREET

All streets not classified as Major Pedestrian or Neighborhood Pedestrian streets are classified as

Local Pedestrian streets. Local Pedestrian streets provide local access and circulation for

pedestrians and must include safe and convenient facilities for pedestrians that are appropriate to

the local street context.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 24

27



FIGURE 3A: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS - AGATE BEACH

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 25

28



FIGURE 3B: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS - NYE BEACH

Major Pedestrian
Corridor

— Neighborhood
Pedestrian Corridor

— Existing Sidewalk
Existing Trail

• Existing Enhanced
Crossing

Newport UGB

Newport City Limits

— Local Street

Water

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION S1.DARDS • JUNE 2021 26

29



FIGURE 3C: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS - DOWNTOWN

EWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 27

30



FIGURE 3D: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS - EAST

Major Pedestriao
Corridor

ewvr Neighborhood
Pedestrian Corridor
Existing Sidewalk
Existing frail

• Esistiog Eohariced
Crossing

C]] Newport UGE

C2 Newport City Limits

— Local Street

Water

yJEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 28

31



FIGURE 3E: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN CORRIDORS - SOUTH BEACH

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 29

32



BICYCLE CORRIDORS

Identifying bicycle corridors helps to support the movement of people riding bikes. The bicycle

corridors are applied to prioritize bicycle improvement projects and to determine the appropriate

(i.e., preferred or acceptable) bicycle facility in constrained roadway conditions. Figure 4 shows

the recommended bicycle corridors for Newport, including Major Bicycle, Neighborhood Bicycle, and

Local Bicycle streets. The identified corridors are intended to provide a complete and connected

bicycle network to facilitate travel for Newport’s residents on city streets. Where either Us 101 or

US 20 provide the only travel connection, a corridor was also identified on the state system.

However, bicycle facilities constructed on state roadways are subject to review and approval by

ODOT based on guidance from the Blueprint for Urban Design (BUD)4 and the Highway Design

Manual (HDM),5 and consequently, lack of a bicycle corridor designation on US 101 or US 20 does

not preclude the construction of future bicycle improvements.

MAJOR BICYCLE STREET

A Major Bicycle street includes corridors linking different parts of the city, and those providing

primary access to key attractions within Newport. The bike facilities should be high quality for the

roadway functional classification and emphasize safe, convenient, and comfortable bicycle travel.

Although both US 101 and US 20 provide key connections for bicycle travel within Newport, without

significant capital improvements, these streets will likely remain a barrier for bicyclists. Where

feasible, a Major Bicycle street has been designated on parallel city streets that are more suitable

to bicycle travel.

NEIGHBORHOOD BICYCLE STREET

A Neighborhood Bicycle street includes those connecting to Major Bicycle streets and those

providing access to schools, bicycle paths, parks, open spaces, and other significant destinations.

These routes establish direct and convenient bicycle routes and provide bicycle facility coverage

within ¼ of a mile of any given point in the city. These routes may include wayfinding to direct

bicyclists to other areas of Newport

LOCAL BICYCLE STREET

All streets not classified as Major Bicycle or Neighborhood Bicycle streets are classified as Local

Bicycle streets. Local Bicycle streets provide local access and circulation for bicyclists in a shared

roadway environment (without shared lane markings). The low vehicle speeds and volumes make

them suitable for shared bicycle travel.

ODOT. Blueprint for Urban Design. https://www.oreaon.cjov/odotlEnaineerinc/Documents RoadwayEng/BlueDrint-for

urban-Design vl.odf. 2020.

ODOT. Highway Design Manual. https: //www.oregon.gov/odot/Engineering/Papes/Hwv-Design-Manual.asDx. 2012.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 30

33



FIGURE 4A: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED BICYCLE CORRIDORS - AGATE BEACH

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 31

34



FIGURE 4B: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED BICYCLE CORRIDORS - NYE BEACH

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 32

35



FIGURE 4C: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED BICYCLE CORRIDORS - DOWNTOWN

NL,

Nofth

en r&

cn a
uth St

South

Major Bicycle Corridor
tlb Neighborhood Bicycle

Corridor

ID Newport UGB
Newport City Limits

— Local Street

Water

Miles
0 0 0.2

C-)

YAC
EST

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 33

36



FIGURE 4D: NEWPORT’S PROPOSED BICYCLE CORRIDORS - EAST

..___ Major Bicycle Corridor
Neighborhood Bicycle
Corridor

Newport UGB
Newport City Limits

— Local Street

Water

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 34

37



FIGURE 4E NEWPORT’S PROPOSED BICYCLE CORRIDORS - SOUTH BEACH

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 35

38



MULTIMODAL NETWORK DESIGN

The recommended design of the streets in Newport is based on the functional classifications for

motor vehicles. The recommended designs are intended to be implemented in newly developing or

redeveloping areas of the city, where constrained conditions do not limit the ability to construct the

typical cross-section described in the following sections. The construction or reconstruction of some

streets may be constrained by challenging topography or environmentally sensitive, historic, or

developed areas, and various minimum design parameters are outlined for these locations. Even

unconstrained locations may be candidate locations to apply the minimum design parameters if

they function as low-volume local streets (i.e., fewer than 500 vehicles per day).

Roadway cross-section design elements include travel lanes, curbs, planter strips, sidewalks on

both sides of the road, and bicycle facilities. The following sections detail both preferred (for

application in unconstrained locations) and minimum element widths (for application in constrained

locations or for low-volume local streets) for each of Newport’s functional classifications along with

guidance for identifying an acceptable street cross-section in constrained locations. Acceptable

street cross-sections are derived from the preferred cross-section standard based on the street’s

pedestrian and bicycle corridor classification. Preferred element widths should be implemented in

most locations; minimum element widths require a documented constraint (e.g., topography,

environmental, existing buildings) and approval by the City Engineer and Planning Director. The

minimum element widths were expanded to allow flexibility in the width of specific elements

depending on the multimodal corridors detailed above. The existing minimum right-of-way width

and roadway width for the City of Newport are outlined in the Municipal Code (13.05.015).

Although this technical memo provides guidance for the preferred facilities on Arterial streets, both

US 101 and US 20 are under the state’s jurisdiction and are subject to the design criteria in the

Highway Design Manual (HDM),6 other ODOT manuals, and the companion document, the Blueprint

for Urban Design (BUD).7 The BUD supplements existing design manuals and provides enhanced

design guidance until a full design manual update can be completed. The recommended guidance is

consistent with the BUD, and the recommended urban contexts for US 101 and US 20 in Newport

are provided in the appendix.

TRAVEL LANES AND PARKING

The vehicle classifications and freight corridors determine the design parameters for travel lanes of

each street. This is the throughway for drivers, including cars, buses, and trucks. Table 2 provides

the recommended travel lane and on-street parking requirements. The vehicle functional

classification of the street is the starting point to determine the number of through lanes, lane

ODOT. Highway Design Manual. https://www.oregon.gov/odotfEngineering/Pages/Hwy-Desicin-Manual.asx. 2012.

ODOT. Blueprint for Urban Design. https://www.oreaon.gov/odotlEngineerinp/Documents RoadwayEng/Bluei,rint-for

Urban-Design vl.pdf. 2020.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 36

39



widths, and median and left-turn lane requirements. However, freight corridors takes precedence
when determining the appropriate lane width regardless of the functional classification. Streets
identified as part of Newport’s truck network may include travel lanes up to 12 feet wide although
11 feet travel lanes are also acceptable. Wider lanes (over 12 feet) should only be used for short
distances at intersections, where needed. Streets that require a median! center turn lane should
include a minimum 6-foot-wide pedestrian refuge at marked crossings. Otherwise, the median can
be reduced to a minimum of 4 feet at midblock locations, before widening at intersections for left-
turn lanes (where required or needed).

Select low-volume Local Streets (i.e., fewer than 500 vehicles per day) are also candidates for a
Shared Streets treatment where all roadway users share a single, unmarked travel lane that is
narrower than a traditional Local Street. Shared Streets require vehicle traffic to yield to
pedestrians and bicyclists within the roadway which is reinforced by the narrow pavement width.
The design of these streets is similar to many of Newport’s existing, low-volume streets. Shared
Streets are intended as an alternative to Local Street design where widening is not feasible, and
this treatment supersedes the requirements of the Oregon Fire Code by authority granted to the
City under ORS 368.039.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 37

40



TABLE 2 RECOMMENDED TRAVEL LANE AND ON-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS

ROADWAY ARTERIAL
MAJOR NEIGHBORHOOD

LOCAL SHARED

CLASSIFICATION STREET’
COLLECTOR COLLECTOR

STREET STREET2

TYPICAL THROUGH
LANES (BOTH 2 to 4 2 2 2 1
DIRECTIONS)

MINIMUM LANE WIDTH 11-12 ft.3 10 ft.4 10 ft.4 10 ft. 16 ft.

Optional 11-14
Optional 11

MEDIAN! CENTER ft. median!
ft. center turn None None None

TURN LANE’ center turn
lane6

lane

Optional Optional

Context 8 ft. Optional 8 ft.
MINIMUM ON-STREET dependent, 7-8 preferred, 7 8 ft. preferred, 7 preferred, 7 None

PARKING WIDTH ft. where ft. allowed in ft. allowed in ft. allowed in
applicable residential residential areas 8 residential

areas8 areas 8

Notes:

1. Although guidance is provided for Arterial streets, these are under state jurisdiction. Values presented in
this table are consistent with the Blueprint for Urban Design (BUD). For detailed design
recommendations on US 101 and US 20, the identified urban contexts for Newport are provided in the

appendix and the BUD is publicly available.

2. Shared Street conditions may apply to local streets that carry fewer than 500 vehicles per day.

3. 11 ft. travel lanes are preferred for most urban contexts within Newport. 11 ft. travel lanes are standard
for central business district areas in the BUD. Adjustments may be required for freight reduction review

routes. Final lane width recommendations are subject to review and approval by ODOT.

4. Travel lanes up to 12 ft. may be permitted for designated local truck routes only.

5. A minimum 6-foot-wide pedestrian refuge should be provided at marked crossings. Otherwise, a median
can be reduced to a minimum of 4 feet at midblock locations, before widening at intersections for left-
turn lanes (where required or needed).

6. The BUD recommends a 14 ft. lane for speeds above 40 mph. Final lane width recommendations are

subject to review and approval by ODOT.

7. Center left-turn lane required at intersections with Arterials; minimum 6-foot-wide median required

where refuge is needed for pedestrian/bicycle street crossings.

8. 8 feet width required in commercial areas and 7 feet width allowed in residential areas. Provision of on-

street parking (one-side only) should be limited to City streets (not on a designated freight route) with a
minimum 28 ft. paved width in commercial areas or a minimum 27 ft. in residential areas. Provision of
on-street parking (both sides) should be limited to City streets (not on a designated freight route) with a
minimum 36 ft. paved width in commercial areas or a minimum 34 ft. in residential areas. For

designated freight routes, on-street parking may only be provided with an additional 4 ft. paved width.

On-street parking may be eliminated on one or both sides if adequate parking is provided off-street or to
accommodate bicycle/pedestrian facilities.

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 38

41



NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT TOOLS

Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) describes strategies that can be deployed to slow traffic,
and potentially reduce volumes, creating a more inviting environment for pedestrians and
bicyclists. NTM strategies are primarily traffic calming techniques for improving neighborhood
livability on local streets. These strategies are most appropriate on Local Streets and Neighborhood
Collectors, although a limited set of strategies can also be applied to Major Collectors and Arterials
in special cases. NTM strategies on Arterial roadways requires review and approval by ODOT.
Mitigation measures for neighborhood traffic impacts must balance the need to manage vehicle
speeds and volumes with the need to maintain mobility, circulation, and function for service
providers, such as emergency responders. Examples of tools are shown in Figure 5.

FIGURE 5: SUMMARY OF NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

Chicanes Chokers Curb Extensions

Diverters Median Islands

www.pedbikeimages.org/Carl
Sundstrom

Raised Crosswalks

www.pedbikeimages.org/Adam
Fukushima

Speed Cushions Speed Hump Traffic Circles

www.pedbikeimages.org/Carl
Sundstrom

www.pedbikeimages.org/Dan Burden www.pedbikeimages.org/Dan Burden

www.pedbikeimages.org/Dan Burden www.pedbikeimages.org/Tom Harned

NACTO Urban Street Design Guide www.pedbikeimages.org/Dan Burden

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 39

42



Table 3, below, lists common NTM applications. Any NTM project should include coordination with
emergency response staff to ensure that public safety is not compromised. NTM strategies
implemented on a state facility would require coordination with ODOT regarding freight mobility
considerations.

TABLE 3: APPLICATION OF NTM STRATEGIES

USE BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION IMPACT

APPLICATION
ARTERIALS MAJOR NEIGHBORHOOD LOCAL SPEED TRAFFIC

* COLLECTORS COLLECTORS STREETS REDUCTION DIVERSION

CHICANES V.

CHOKERS V. V. V.

CURB V. V. V. V.
EXTENSIONS

DIVERTERS
(WITH
EMERGENCY V. V. V. V.

VEHICLE PASS-
THROUGH)

MEDIAN V. V. V. V.
ISLANDS

RAISED V. .1 .1 V.
CROSSWALKS

SPEED
CUSHIONS
(WITH V. V. V. V.
EM ERG ENCY
VEHICLE PASS-
THROUGH)

SPEED HUMP V. V. V. V.

TRAFFIC V. V. V. V.
CIRCLES

*Traffjc calming strategies on Arterials require review and approval by ODOT

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 40

43



SIDEWALKS

Sidewalks provide for pedestrian movement and access, enhance pedestrian connectivity, and

promote walking. The recommended pedestrian facilities in Newport intend to encourage walking

by making it more attractive. Vehicle functional classification determine the appropriate pedestrian
facilities along streets, including the width of the throughway for pedestrians and the buffer from
the vehicle travel way. Sidewalk may be provided on one side of the street only where significant
topographical constraints exist as determined by the City Engineer and Planning Director. The
sidewalk encompasses four zones, including the frontage, pedestrian throughway,
furnishings/landscape, and
the buffer (i.e., on-street FIGURE 6: SIDEWALK ZONES

parking or bike facilities).

The recommended
configuration for each of
these zones is provided in
Table 4.

The frontage describes
the section where a
pedestrian interacts with
the adjacent buildings or
private property and
includes entryways and
outdoor seating. This zone
is typically between 1 and
3 feet wide for Major 11

Pedestrian streets and 1/2

foot for other streets. It —
may include a concrete or Pedestrn Wa’kway

natural surface depending Frontage Pedestrian Fi.irnishing/ Buffer
Throughway Landscape (On-&reet)

on the ad)acent land use.
*Induded in Buffer

• The pedestrian
throughway is the accessible zone in which pedestrians travel. It includes a minimum eight-
foot-wide clear throughway along Major Pedestrian, a minimum six-foot-wide clear throughway
for Neighborhood Pedestrian streets, and five-feet wide clear throughway along Local Pedestrian
streets.

• The furnishings? landscape zone is the sidewalk section located between the pedestrian
throughway and the curb, and includes street furnishings or landscaping (e.g., benches, lighting,
bicycle parking, tree wells, and/or plantings). If adjacent to on-street parking, it should also
include a clearance distance between any curbside parking and the street furnishing area or
landscape strip (i.e., so vehicles parking, or opening doors do not interfere with street
furnishings and/or landscaping). Streets located along a transit route should incorporate
furnishings to support transit ridership, such as transit shelters and benches, into the
furnishings/landscape strip. It should include a minimum width of four feet.

• The buffer is the space between the pedestrian throughway and the vehicle travel way, and
may consist of bike facilities, on-street parking, curb extensions, or other elements. This is also
the location where users will access transit. It should include a minimum width between four

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202

I

41

44



and 12 feet, depending on the pedestrian classification, and encompasses the width of on-street
parking, bike facilities, and furnishings/landscape zone.

TABLE 4: PREFERRED SIDEWALK CONFIGURATION

ARTERIAL OR MAJOR COLLECTOR
NEIGHBORHOOD

LOCAL STREET1FUNCTIONAL
COLLECTORCLASSIFICATION

COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL

PREFERRED
CONFIGURATION

3 ft. (City) 1 ft. (City)
FRONTAGE 0.5 ft. 0.5 ft.

1-4 ft. (ODOT) 1 ft. (ODOT)

PEDESTRIAN 8 ft. (City) 8 ft. (City)
6ft. 5ft.

THROUGHWAY 8-10 ft. (ODOT) 8 ft. (ODOT)

4 ft. (City)FURNISHINGS! 4 ft. (City)
LANDSCAPE 5.5-6.5 ft. 4 ft. 4 ft.

(INCLUDES CURB)2 (ODOT)
6.5 ft. (ODOT)

15 ft. (City)
DESIRED WALKWAY 13 ft. (City)

WIDTH Variable
Variable (ODOT)4

10.5 ft. 9.5 ft.

(0 DOT)4

DESIRED BUFFER
12 ft. (City)(PEDESTRIAN 12 ft. (City)

THROUGHWAY TO Variable 4 ft. 4 ft.
Variable (ODOT)4VEHICLE TRAVEL (ODOT)4

WAY)3

Notes:

1. Shared Streets do not require sidewalk

2. Furnishings/landscape width may be reduced to the “acceptable” standard if bike facilities or on
street parking is included within the buffer zone

3. Includes width of on-street parking, bike facilities, and furnishings/landscape zone, if provided

4. Desired walkway and buffer width for ODOT facilities depends on the urban context and are
subject to review and approval by ODOT. Additional detail is provided in the BUD.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 42

45



The construction or reconstruction of some streets may be constrained by challenging topography
or environmentally sensitive, historic, or developed areas. These roadways may require modified
designs to allow for reasonable construction costs. Guidance for modifications to the standard
sidewalk designs is provided in Table 5. The preferred sidewalk element widths, documented in
Table 4, should be implemented in most locations; minimum element widths, summarized in Table
5, require a documented constraint (e.g., topography, environmental, existing buildings) and
approval by the City Engineer and Planning Director. Any modification of a standard sidewalk
design requires justification of any constraints (e.g., topography, environmental, existing buildings)
and approval of an acceptable deviation prior to construction. Sidewalk facilities constructed on
state facilities are subject to review and approval by ODOT based on guidance from the BUD.

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 43

46



TABLE 5: ACCEPTABLE SIDEWALK CONFIGURATION

ARTERIAL OR MAJOR COLLECTOR
FUNCTIONAL

_______________________________

NEIGHBORHOOD
LOCAL STREET1

CLASSIFICATION COLLECTOR
COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL

ACCEPTABLE F
CONFIGURATION

0.5 ft. (City) 0.5 ft. (City)
FRONTAGE 0.5 ft. 0.5 ft.

1-2 ft. (ODOT) 1 ft. ODOT

PEDESTRIAN 8 ft. (City)3 6 ft. (City)
6ft. 5ft.

THROUGHWAY 5-8 ft. (ODOT) 5 ft. (ODOT)

FURNISHINGS? 3 ft. (City) 3 ft. (City)
LANDSCAPE 0.5 ft. 0.5 ft.

(INCLUDES CURB) 0.5 ft. (ODOT) 0.5 ft. (ODOT)

MINIMUM 11.5 ft. (City) 9.5 ft. (City)
7ft. 6ft.

WALKWAY WIDTH Variable (ODOT)4 Variable (ODOT)4

RECOMMENDED
MINIMUM BUFFER

(PEDESTRIAN 3 ft. (City) 3 ft. (City)
0.5 ft. 0.5 ft.

THROUGHWAY TO Variable (ODOT)4 Variable (000T)4
VEHICLE TRAVEL

WAY)2

Notes:

1. Shared Streets do not require sidewalk

2. Includes width of on-street parking, bike facilities, and furnishings/landscape zone

3. In highly constrained locations, the landscape buffer may be eliminated to meet the required 8 ft.
pedestrian throughway with approval from the City Engineer and Planning Director

4. Desired walkway and buffer width for ODOT facilities depends on the urban context and are subject to
review and approval by ODOT. Additional detail is provided in the BUD.

BICYCLE FACILITIES

Bike facilities help support the movement of people riding bikes. Streets should be safe and

comfortable for bicyclists of all ages and abilities to encourage ridership. Building high quality

bicycle infrastructure can improve transportation safety, minimize public health risks, reduce

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 44

47



congestion, and provide more equitable access to transportation. The preferred and acceptable

bicycle facilities can be seen in Table 6. Vehicle function classification is used to determine the

appropriate facilities along streets. The preferred treatments are recommended to include

protected or separated facilities from the vehicle travel way along Arterial and Major Collector

streets and bicycle lanes along Neighborhood Collector streets. A shared street environment will be
provided on Newport’s Local Streets.

The construction or reconstruction of some streets may be constrained by challenging topography

or environmentally sensitive, historic, or developed areas. These roadways may require modified

designs to allow for reasonable construction costs. Guidance for modifications to the preferred bike

facility is provided in Table 6. Any modification of a standard bike facility requires justification of

any constraints (e.g., topography, environmental, existing buildings) and approval of an acceptable

deviation prior to construction.

TABLE 6: PREFERRED AND ACCEPTABLE BICYCLE FACILITIES

VEHICLE ARTERIAL OR MAJOR NEIGHBORHOOD LOCAL STREET

CLASSIFICATION COLLECTOR COLLECTOR

PREFERRED BIKE Protected or separated facilities
FACILITY from the vehicle travel way (e.g.,

Shared streets

(UNCONSTRAINED shared use path, separated bicycle
Bicycle lanes without shared lane

CONDITIONS) lanes)
markings

ACCEPTABLE BIKE
FACILITY

Shared streets with Shared streets

(CONSTRAINED
Bicycle lanes shared lane without shared lane

CONDITIONS)1 markings markings

Notes:

1. Any modification of a standard bike facility requires justification of any constraints (e.g.,
topography, environmental, existing buildings) and approval of an acceptable deviation prior to
construction.

BICYCLE FACILITY OPTIONS

Table 7 shows bicycle facility options and recommended configurations. In general, facilities that

are protected or separated from the vehicle travel way include a 10-foot two-way or 6-foot one-

way cycle track, 10-foot shared use path, or 8-foot buffered bike lanes. Non-buffered bike lanes

should be a minimum of 6-feet wide, while some shared streets should include shared lane

markings, with vehicle speed and volume management. The preferred bicycle facility types,
documented in Table 6, should be implemented in most locations while implementation of an

acceptable bicycle facility requires a documented constraint (e.g., topography, environmental,

existing buildings) and approval by the City Engineer and Planning Director. Bicycle facilities
constructed on state facilities are subject to review and approval by ODOT based on guidance from
the BUD.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 45

48



TABLE 7 BICYCLE FACILITY OPTIONS AND RECOMMENDED CONFIGURATIONS

FACILITY TYPE
RECOMMENDED CONFIGURATION RECOMMENDED DESIGN PARAMETERS

TWO-WAY
CYCLE TRACK

(PROTECTED!
SEPARATED
FACILITY)1

Option: At sidewalk grade

Minimum width: 12 ft.

Minimum buffer: Up to 6 ft. from vehicle
travel way; consider a buffer or other
delineation to separate bicycle facility from
sidewalk

Option: At roadway grade

Minimum width: 12 ft.

Minimum buffer: Up to 6 ft. from vehicle
travel way; 0 ft. from sidewalk

ONE-WAY
CYCLE TRACK

(PROTECTED?
SEPARATED
FACILITY)1

Option: At sidewalk grade

Minimum width: 8 ft.

Minimum buffer: Up to 6 ft. from vehicle
travel way; consider a buffer or other
delineation to separate bicycle facility from
sidewalk

Option: At roadway grade

Minimum width: 8 ft.

Minimum buffer: Up to 6 ft. from vehicle
travel way; 0 ft. from sidewalk

SHARED USE
PATH

(PROTECTED!
SEPARATED
FACILITY)1

Minimum width: 12 ft.

Minimum shoulder: 2 ft. on each side

Minimum buffer: Up to 6 ft. from vehicle
travel way

BUFFERED
BIKE LANES

(PROTECTED
FACILITY)1

Minimum width: 8 ft. (5 ft. bike lane with 3
ft. buffer)

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 46

49



TABLE 7 BICYCLE FACILITY OPTIONS AND RECOMMENDED CONFIGURATIONS

FACILITY TYPE
RECOMMENDED CONFIGURATION RECOMMENDED DESIGN PARAMETERS

BIKE LANES1 Minimum width: 6 ft.

Optional treatments: Shared lane
markings, vehicle speed and volume
management

Notes:

1. Desired bicycle facility and buffer width for ODOT facilities depends on the urban context and
are subject to review and approval by ODOT. Additional detail is provided in the BUD.

PREFERRED STREET CROSS-SECTIONS FOR CITY STREETS

To determine the typical cross-section for a street implemented in newly developing or

redeveloping areas of the city, the motor vehicle functional classification is used to determine the

design requirements for each mode. In unconstrained conditions, the preferred facility design

requirements should be met for all modes (see Tables 2, 4, 6, and 7 earlier in this document). The
recommended preferred cross-sections for Major Collectors, Neighborhood Collectors, and Local

Streets in unconstrained conditions are provided below in Figures 7, 8, and 9/gB, respectively. The

preferred Local Street cross-sections include options for parking on one side of the street only and

no on-street parking. The provision of parking on one side of the street only should be determined

based on the availability of off-street parking as determined by the City Engineer and Planning

Director. All typical cross-sections provided below assume that the street is not located on a
designated local freight route. Local freight routes may require travel lanes up to 12 ft. although 11

ft. travel lanes are also acceptable.

No typical cross-sections are provided for Arterials in Newport since these streets are subject to

review and approval by ODOT. Design guidance from ODOT can be found in the BUD and is

summarized in Tables 2, 4, 6, and 7 earlier in this document. ODOT’s design guidance is context

dependent which provides flexibility in specific element widths when determining typical cross-

sections.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 47

50



FIGURE 7: PREFERRED MAJOR COLLECTOR TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION (SOURCE: STREETMIX)

.
— — —- —. **

j W I — — H • I (
I. -1- 7

‘11 4 8 5 3 11 1035 8 4
11

Sidewalk Parking lane Drive lane Center turn lane Drive lane Parking erie Sidewalk

FIGURE 8: PREFERRED NEIGHBORHOOD COLLECTOR TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION (SOURCE:

STREETMIX)

—
*

—

6N’ 4’ 8 10’ 10’ 6’ 8’ 4’ 6W

Sidewalk Parking lane Bike lane Drive lane Drive lane Bike lane Parking lane Sidewalk

FIGURE 9A: PREFERRED LOCAL STREET TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - PARKING ONE SIDE ONLY

(SOURCE: STREETMIX)

I
5W

Sidewalk

4’ 10’

Drive lane

Ip__
I

4’ 55

Sidewalk

10’

Drive lane

• •

V.,

-_

_

• S — S

-t

55’ 4’ 10’ 10’ 8’ 4’ SW

Sidewalk Drive lane DrIve lane Parking lane Sidewalk

FIGURE 9B: PREFERRED LOCAL STREET TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION — NO PARKING (SOURCE:

STREETMIX)

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 48

51



ACCEPTABLE STREET CROSS-SECTIONS FOR CITY STREETS

The preferred designs recommended in the previous section (Preferred Street Cross-Sections for
City Streets) are intended to be implemented in newly developing or redeveloping areas of the city
(e.g., areas where two or more adjacent parcels redevelop concurrently, subdivisions constructed
on existing parcels), where constrained conditions do not limit the ability to construct the typical
cross-section. The construction or reconstruction of some streets may be constrained by
challenging topography or environmentally sensitive, historic, or developed areas, and various
acceptable design parameters are provided for these locations. Constrained conditions may apply
when the required width of the street cross-section (i.e., the sum of the recommended widths of
travel lanes, on-street parking, pedestrian, and bicycle facilities) exceeds the available right-of-
way.

If the required cross-section is wider than the available right-of-way, coordination with the City of
Newport is required to determine whether right-of-way acquisition is necessary or design elements
can be narrowed or removed. For locations with constrained right-of-way, guidance for determining
an acceptable street cross-section is summarized in Table 7 and typical constrained cross-sections
are summarized below in Figures 10, 11, and 12A/12B/12C. The steps outlined in Table 8 provide
guidance on the order in which cross-section elements should be reduced to acceptable minimum
standards based on the designated pedestrian or bicycle corridors. Any modifications to the
preferred street cross-section will require findings that the proposal meets defined constraints
(e.g., topography, environmental, existing buildings) and approval of an acceptable deviation from
the City Engineer and Planning Director prior to construction. Constrained conditions on ODOT
facilities will require review and approval by ODOT

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 49

52



TABLE 8: PROCESS FOR DETERMINING STREET CROSS-SECTIONS IN CONSTRAINED CONDITIONS

ANY NON- STEPS TO REDUCE LOWER PRIORITY STREET COMPONENTS5

ARTERIAL’

STREET

FUNCTIONAL
STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4

CLASSIFICATION

WITH

EQUAL Reduce sidewalk Reduce the
PEDESTRIAN AND Choose acceptable bike

frontage zone to
BICYCLE facility furnishings!

CORRIDORS2 acceptable width landscape zone
or pedestrian

HIGHER Eliminate on- Implement Reduce sidewalk throughway to
PEDESTRIAN VS. street parking acceptable bike frontage zone to acceptable
BICYCLE on one or both facility acceptable width width
CORRIDORS sides

Reduce the furnishings!
HIGHER BICYCLE Reduce sidewalk Implement

landscape zone or
VS. PEDESTRIAN frontage zone to acceptable bike
CORRIDORS4 acceptable width

pedestrian throughway
facility

to acceptable width

Notes:

1. The street cross-section for ODOT faciHties depends on the urban context and
review and approval by ODOT. Additional detail is provided in the BUD.

2. Includes Major Pedestrian vs. Major Bicycle corridor, Neighborhood Pedestrian vs.
Neighborhood Bicycle corridor, or Local Pedestrian vs. Local Bicycle corridor.

are subject to

3. Includes Major Pedestrian vs. Neighborhood or Local Bicycle corridor, or Neighborhood
Pedestrian vs. Local Bicycle corridor.

4. Includes Major Bicycle vs. Neighborhood or Local Pedestrian corridor, or Neighborhood Bicycle
vs. Local Pedestrian corridor

5. Local Streets that carry less than 500 vehicles per day are candidates for shared street
treatments in lieu of this process

FIGURE 10: ACCEPTABLE MAJOR COLLECTOR TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION (SOURCE: STREETMIX)

is’

3 8

Sidewalk

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

I,

8>’ 3’ 6’ 10’ 10’ 6’

Sidewalk Bike lane Drive lane Drive lane Bike lane

50

53



FIGURE 11: ACCEPTABLE NEIGHBORHOOD COLLECTOR TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION (SOURCE:

STREETMIX)

Sidewalk Sharrow Sharrow Sidewalk

FIGURE 12A: ACCEPTABLE LOCAL STREET TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - PARKING ONE SIDE ONLY

(SOURCE: STREETMIX)

‘4 — -— -—. I

10, 8 -

‘
Sidewalk Drive lane Drive lane Parking lane Sidewalk

FIGURE 12B: ACCEPTABLE LOCAL STREET TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - NO PARKING (SOURCE:

STREETMIX)

-B,

6 10 10 6

Sidewalk Drive lane Drive lane Sidewalk

FIGURE 12C: ACCEPTABLE LOCAL STREET TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - SHARED STREET (SOURCE:

STREETMIX)

Buffer Pedestrian Buffer

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

7’ 6’

Sharrow

7’

51.

54



SEPARATED PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE FACILITIES

Some pedestrian and bicycle facilities may be separated from the right-of-way of a street. These

facilities include pedestrian trails, pedestrian and bicycle accessways, and shared use paths. These

facilities serve a variety of recreation and transportation needs for pedestrians and bicyclists.

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL

Pedestrian trails are typically located in parks or natural areas and provide opportunities for both

pedestrian circulation and recreation. They are recommended to include a minimum width of 5 feet

(see Table 9) and may include a hard or soft surface.

ACCESSWAY

Accessways provide short path segments between disconnected streets or localized recreational

walking and biking opportunities. Accessways must be on public easements or rights-of-way and

have minimum paved surface of 8 feet, with a 2-foot shoulder on each side, and 12 feet of right-of

way. Accessways should be provided in any locations where the length between existing pedestrian

and bicycle connections exceeds the maximum allowable length identified in Table 10.

SHARED USE PATH

Shared use paths provide off-roadway facilities for walking and biking travel. Depending on their

location, they can serve both recreational and citywide circulation needs. Shared use path designs

vary in surface types and widths. Hard surfaces are generally better for bicycle travel. Widths need

to provide ample space for both walking and biking and should be able to accommodate

maintenance vehicles.

A shared use path is recommended to be at least 10 feet wide, with a 2-foot shoulder on each side,

and 14 feet of right-of-way (see Table 9). In areas with significant walking or biking demand (e.g.,

Nye Beach Area, Oregon Coast Bike Route) or on ODOT facilities, that path is recommended to be

12 feet wide, with a 2-foot shoulder on each side and a total right-of-way of 16 feet (see Table 9).

A shared use path may be narrowed to 8 feet over short distances to address environmental or

right-of-way constraints.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 52

55



TABLE 9: SEPARATED PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE FACILITIES RECOMMENDED DESIGNS

HIGH-DEMAND
FACILITY PEDESTRIAN ACCESSWAY TYPICAL SHARED

SHARED USE PATH
OPTIONS TRAIL DESIGN DESIGN USE PATH DESIGN

DESIGN1

RECOMMENDED
CON FIG U RATION

Notes:

1. HIGH-DEMAND SHARED USE PATH IS REQUIRED PARALLEL TO ODOT

FACILITIES AND IN OTHER AREAS WITH SIGNIFICANT WALKING OR BIKING

DEMAND (E.G., NYE BEACH AREA, OREGON COAST BIKE ROUTE)

STREET CROSSINGS

Streets with high traffic volumes and/or speeds in areas with trail crossings, or nearby transit
stops, residential uses, schools, parks, shopping and employment destinations generally require
enhanced street crossings with treatments, such as marked crosswalks, high visibility crossings,
and curb extensions to improve the safety and convenience for pedestrians. Crossings should be
consistent with the recommended transportation facility spacing standards shown in Table 10.
Street crossings along US 101 or US 20 should be provided between every 250 to 1,500 feet,
depending on the urban context, as summarized in Table 3-9 of the BUD. Exceptions include where
the connection is impractical due to topography, inadequate sight distance, high vehicle travel
speeds, lack of supporting land use or other factors that may prevent safe crossing. All crossings
on state facilities require review and approval by ODOT.

Enhanced pedestrian crossing treatments should be considered on high speed or high volume roads
(e.g. US 101, US 20) at transit stops, trail crossings, and at Major Pedestrian street highway
crossings that connect major destinations (e.g. parks, grocery stores, schools) to residential areas.
The recommended enhanced pedestrian crossing treatment should be determined using the
National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) Report 562, Improving Pedestrian
Safety at Unsignalized Intersections. These guidelines for pedestrian crossing treatments are based
on vehicle speed on the major street, pedestrian crossing distance, peak hour pedestrian volume,
peak hour vehicle volume, and local parameters such as motorist compliance, pedestrian walking
speed, and pedestrian start-up and clearance time. NCHRP Report 562 includes worksheets for
inputting the variables above and identifying the appropriate treatment type. It is recommended

16
Walk/Bike

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 53

56



that these guidelines be reviewed with all traffic studies for any potential street crossing associated

with new development in the city.

NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

It is recommended that neighborhood traffic impacts be reviewed with all traffic studies associated

with new development in the city. Any development that would be expected to increase through-

trips on existing residential-adjacent Neighborhood Collector or Local Streets by 40 or more

vehicles during the evening peak hour or 400 vehicles per day will require assessment and

mitigation of residential street impacts. Through-trips are defined as those to and from a proposed

development that have neither an origin nor a destination in the neighborhood. The study shall

include all of the following:

• Existing number of through-trips per day on adjacent residential Local Streets or Neighborhood
Collector streets.

• Projected number of through-trips per day on adjacent residential Local Streets or Neighborhood
Collector streets that will be added by the proposed development.

A Neighborhood Collector or Local Street is considered impacted if volumes are increased above

1,500 average daily trips on Neighborhood Collector streets or 1,200 average daily trips on Local

Streets. Volume and speed management tools must be provided to mitigate for the impacts of

projected through-trips consistent with Table 3.

In addition, a formal neighborhood traffic management program is recommended to respond to

neighborhood concerns outside of the development review process. The process should be initiated

by a citizen filed request that includes petition signatures of impacted neighbors or business

owners and include a preliminary evaluation on vehicle travel speeds or volumes along the

petitioned street. If a problem were found to exist, solutions would be identified and the process

continued with neighborhood meetings, feedback from service and maintenance providers, cost

evaluation, and traffic calming device implementation. Six to twelve months after implementation,

the device should be reevaluated for effectiveness.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

Performance standards are applied to the operation and design of transportation facilities to ensure

that the network functions as intended. In Newport, this includes performance standards for

vehicles and overall system connectivity.

TRANSPORTATION FACILITY AND ACCESS SPACING STANDARDS

Transportation facility and access spacing standards include a broad set of techniques that balance

the need to provide for efficient, safe, and timely multimodal travel with the ability to allow access

to individual destinations. These standards help create a system of direct, continuous, and

connected transportation facilities to minimize out-of-direction travel and decrease travel times for

all users, while enhancing safety for people walking, biking and driving by reducing conflict points.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 54

57



Currently, the city restricts driveways onto Arterial streets to spacing of 500 feet where practical,8

and limits blocks to 1,000 feet in length between corners.9 Table 10 identifies recommended
maximum and minimum public roadway intersection, minimum private access, and maximum

pedestrian and bicycle connection spacing standards for streets in Newport. New streets or

redeveloping properties must comply with these standards to the extent practical, as determined

by the city engineer. As the opportunity arises through redevelopment, streets or driveways not

complying with these standards could improve with strategies such as shared access points, access

restrictions (through the use of a median or channelization islands), or closure of unnecessary

access points, as feasible.

All Arterial streets in Newport are under ODOT jurisdiction. See the Oregon Highway Plan and

Blueprint for Urban Design for spacing standards along US 101 and US 20.

TABLE 10: TRANSPORTATION FACILITY AND ACCESS SPACING STANDARDS1

ARTERIALS4
MAJOR NEIGHBORHOOD LOCAL

COLLECTORS COLLECTORS STREETS

MAXIMUM BLOCK

LENGTH (PUBLIC STREET 1,000 feet 1,000 feet 1,000 feet
TO PUBLIC STREET)

MINIMUM BLOCK

LENGTH (PUBLIC STREET 200 feet 150 feet 125 feet
TO PUBLIC STREET)

MAXIMUM LENGTH

BETWEEN

PEDESTRIAN /BICYCLE

CONNECTIONS (PUBLIC

STREET TO PUBLIC 300 feet 300 feet 300 feet
STREET, PUBLIC STREET

TO CONNECTION OR
CONNECTION TO

CONNECTION)2

MINIMUM DRIVEWAY

SPACING (DRIVEWAY TO 350-1,320 feet 100 feet 75 feet N/A
DRIVEWAY)

MINIMUM
INTERSECTION sET

350-1,320 feet 150 feet 75 feet 25 feet

DRIVEWAYS ONLY)3

B city of Newport Municipal Code 14.14.120

City of Newport Municipal Code 13.05.020

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE •TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 55

58



TABLE 10: TRANSPORTATION FACILITY AND ACCESS SPACING STANDARDS

VEHICLE MOBILITY STANDARDS

Mobility standards for streets and intersections in Newport provide a metric for assessing the

impacts of new development on the existing transportation system and for identifying where

capacity improvements may be needed. They are the basis for requiring improvements needed to

sustain the transportation system as growth and development occur. Two common methods

currently used in Oregon to gauge traffic operations for motor vehicles are volume to capacity (v/c)

ratios and level of service (LOS), described below. Vehicle miles travelled (VMT) is a new mobility

standard that is currently being considered by Oregon, but there is currently no guidance or

legislation for its implementation. VMT provides a more comprehensive look at transportation

impacts by encouraging compact development that supports active transportation and transit over

traditional vehicle mobility standards which can encourage developments on the periphery of urban

areas. As part of the next TSP update, Newport should consider implementing a VMT mobility

standard if additional guidance for implementation is provided by ODOT at that time.

Volume-to-capacity (v/c) ratio: A v/c ratio is a decimal representation (between 0.00 and 1.00)
of the proportion of capacity that is being used at a turn movement, approach leg, or
intersection. The ratio is the peak hour traffic volume divided by the hourly capacity of a given
intersection or movement. A lower ratio indicates smooth operations and minimal delays. A ratio
approaching 1.00 indicates increased congestion and reduced performance.

MAJOR NEIGHBORHOOD LOCAL
ARTERIALS4

COLLECTORS COLLECTORS STREETS

MINIMUM
INTERSECTION SET
BACK (RIGHT-IN/RIGHT-

350-1,320 feet 75 feet 50 feet 25 feet

OUT DRIVEWAYS ONLY)3

NOTES:

1. ALL DISTANCES MEASURED FROM THE EDGE OF ADJACENT APPROACHES.

2. MID-BLOCK PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONNECTIONS MUST BE PROVIDED WHEN
THE BLOCK LENGTH EXCEEDS 300 FEET TO ENSURE CONVENIENT ACCESS FOR ALL
USERS. MID-BLOCK PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONNECTIONS MUST BE PROVIDED
ON A PUBLIC EASEMENT OR RIGHT-OF-WAY EVERY 300 FEET, UNLESS THE
CONNECTION IS IMPRACTICAL DUE TO TOPOGRAPHY, INADEQUATE SIGHT
DISTANCE, HIGH VEHICLE TRAVEL SPEEDS, LACK OF SUPPORTING LAND USE OR
OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY PREVENT SAFE CROSSING. WHEN THE BLOCK LENGTH
IS LESS THAN 300 FEET, MID-BLOCK PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CONNECTIONS
ARE NOT REQUIRED.

3. A PROPERTY MUST CONSTRUCT ACCESS TO A LOWER CLASSIFIED ROADWAY,
WHERE POSSIBLE

4. ALL ARTERIAL STREETS IN NEWPORT ARE UNDER ODOT JURISDICTION. ODOT
FACILITIES ARE SUBJECT TO ACCESS SPACING GUIDELINES IN THE OREGON
HIGHWAY PLAN (SEE TABLE 14 OF APPENDIX C) AND THE BLUEPRINT FOR URBAN
DESIGN WHICH VARY BASED ON POSTED SPEED AND URBAN CONTEXT

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 56

59



• Level of service (LOS): LOS is a “report card” rating (A through F) based on the average delay
experienced by vehicles at the intersection. LOS A, B, and C indicate conditions where traffic
moves without significant delays over periods of peak hour travel demand. LOS D and E are
progressively worse operating conditions. LOS F represents conditions where average vehicle
delay is excessive, and demand exceeds capacity, typically resulting in long queues and delays.

The City of Newport does not currently have adopted mobility standards for motor vehicles. It is
recommended that the City of Newport consider adopting mobility standards to include both a v/c
ratio and LOS standard. Having both a LOS (delay-based) and v/c (congestion-based) standard can
be helpful in situations where one metric may not be enough, such as an all-way stop where one
approach is over capacity but the overall intersection delay meets standards. The City of Newport
should also introduce mobility standards that depend on the intersection control which can better
capture acceptable levels of performance across different intersection control types. Table 11,
below, summarizes recommended mobility targets.

TABLE 11: RECOMMENDED VEHICLE MOBILITY STANDARDS FOR LOCAL STREETS

PROPOSED
INTERSECTION

MOBILITY REPORTING MEASURE
TYPE

STAN DARD

LOS D and
SIGNALIZED Intersection

v/c O.90

ALL-WAY STOP
LOS D and

OR Worst Approach
v/c O.90ROUNDABOUTS

TWO-WAY LOS E and
Worst Major Approach/Worst Minor Approach

STOP v/c O.95

NOTES:

1. APPLIES TO APPROACHES THAT SERVE MORE THAN 20 VEHICLES; THERE IS NO

STANDARD FOR APPROACHES SERVING LOWER VOLUMES.

For State facilities, mobility targets are v/c ratio based and listed in the OHP. Alternative mobility
targets have previously been adopted on US 101 in South Beach. Table 12 lists the existing
mobility targets for state facilities in Newport. Note that the need for alternative mobility targets
will be evaluated and discussed in Technical Memorandum #11: Alternative Mobility Targets.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 57

60



TABLE 12: EXISTING MOBILITY TARGETS FOR US 20 AND US 101

ADOPTED V/C MOBILITY TARGET

ROADWAY EXTENTS
SIGNALIZED UNSIGNALIZEO1

North Urban Growth Boundary to NE
US 101 0.80 0.80/0.90

20 Street

0.90 except

US 101 NE 2O’ Street to SE 40th Street2 US 101/SE 32 St: 0.99 0.90/0.95

US 101/SE 35th St: 0.99

0.80 except

US 101/SE 40th St: 0.99
SE 40th Street to south Urban

US 101
Growth Boundary2 US 101/SE 50th St: 0.85 0.80/0.90

US 101/South Beach State
Park Entrance: 0.85

Urban Growth Boundary to Moore
US 20 0.80 0.80/0.90

Drive

US 20 Moore Drive to US 101 0.85 0.85/0.95

NOTES:

1. FOR UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS, THE MOBILITY TARGET IS LISTED FOR
MAJOR APPROACH/MINOR APPROACH.

2. ALTERNATIVE MOBILITY TARGETS HAVE BEEN ADOPTED IN SOUTH BEACH.

A For unsignalized intersections, the mobility target is listed for major approach/minor approach.

8Alternative mobility targets have been adopted in South Beach.

LIFELINE ROUTES

Newport’s location on the Oregon Coast makes it vulnerable to both earthquakes and tsunamis.

Statewide planning efforts have previously identified seismic lifeline routes and tsunami evacuation

routes within Newport. No additional emergency routes are recommended in the 2021 TSP.

The Oregon Seismic Lifeline Routes are a set of streets designated to facilitate emergency response

and rapid economic recovery following a disaster. These routes include three tiers of streets, and

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 58

61



higher tier routes are prioritized for seismic retrofits on the existing state-owned facilities.’0 Within
Newport, US 101 (north of US 20) is a designated Tier 1 lifeline route. Both US 101 (south of US
20) and US 20 are designated Tier 3 lifeline routes.1’ These routes are identified below in Figure
13.

While much of Newport is outside of the tsunami hazard area, the beach front, creek drainages,
and the south beach area will need to evacuate in the event of a tsunami. The tsunami hazard
areas and identified evacuation assembly areas are also identified below in Figure 13. Specific
evacuation routes for each low-lying area are also available online.’2

Ensuring the lifeline and evacuation routes serve their intended purpose both during and following
a disaster will be critical to ensure public safety and facilitate recovery. Transportation projects
which promote seismic resilience on lifeline routes, pedestrian or bicycle facilities on evacuation
routes, or other wayfinding projects should be prioritized in the 2021 TSP.

‘° cH2MHiII. Seismic Lifeilnes Evaluation, Vulnerability Synthesis, and Identification, 2012.

Identification.pdf

Figure 6-1. Seismic Lifelines Evaluation, Vulnerability Synthesis, and Identification, 2012.
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Planning/Documents/Seismic-Lifelines-Evaluation-Vulnerability-Synthese
Identification.pdf

12 Detailed, Neighborhood-Specific Tsunami Evacuation Routes. https //www.oregongeology.org/tsuclearinghouse/pubs
evacbro_neighborhoods. htm

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 59

62



FIGURE 13A: LIFELINE ROUTES — AGATE BEACH

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 60

63



FIGURE 13B: LIFELINE ROUTES — NYE BEACH

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 61

64



FIGURE 13C: LIFELINE ROUTES - DOWNTOWN

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 62

65



FIGURE 13D: LIFELINE ROUTES - EAST NEWPORT

YAQUINA
ESTUARY

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 63

66



FIGURE 13E: LIFELINE ROUTES — SOUTH BEACH

64

Tsunami Assemb’y
Area

Liteline Routes

I Newport UGB

/ Newport City Limits

Q:: j — Local Street

Water

I c —
— Miles

0 0.1 °YAQ

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

67



STREET STORMWATER DRAINAGE MANAGEMENT

The City of Newport Municipal Code states that drainage facilities should be designed to consider
the capacity and grade necessary to maintain unrestricted flow from areas draining from a new
land division and to allow extension of the system to serve such areas.

Newport has neighborhoods with significant stormwater constraints, including Agate Beach, where
landslide hazards and coastal erosion are common on the western edge of the neighborhood. As
transportation improvements are constructed in Agate Beach, stormwater management will be
critical to ensure that runoff from roadway improvements do not contribute to these existing
hazards which could result in significant property damage. Potential management strategies could
include requiring permeable pavement or bioswales which would hold stormwater prior to
infiltration. These solutions could mitigate runoff which could impact the coastal bluffs in this
neighborhood.

In addition to the coastal hazards, previous grading practices within the Agate Beach neighborhood
could lead to excessive settlement for roadways and pathways due to the nature of the underlying
soil. These settlement considerations could require flexible pavement or unimproved
roadway/natural surface pathway standards which are more resilient to ground settlement.

Prior to construction of any transportation improvements within the Agate Beach neighborhood, a
geotechnical and stormwater investigation will need to be completed to further detail any potential
challenges or stormwater concerns for this area. A summary of the specific hazards facing Agate
Beach is provided in the appendix.

[PLACE HOLDER FOR ADDITIONAL TEXT FROM THE CIVIL ENGINEERING SUB CONSULTANT]

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 65

68



ITS COORDINATION GUIDELINES

WHY ITS’

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) involve the application of advanced technologies and

proven management techniques to relieve congestion, enhance safety, provide services to

travelers, and assist transportation system

operators in implementing suitable traffic
AN INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

management strategies. ITS focuses on increasing (ITS) APPLIES ADVANCED TECHNOLOGIES AND
the efficiency of the existing transportation MANAGEMENT TECHNIDUES TO:

infrastructure, which enhances the overall system

performance and reduces the need to add capacity LIEV CONGEITION

(e.g., travel lanes). Efficiency is achieved by

providing services and information to travelers so A
that they can make better travel decisions and to i3tEM AND ENNANCI SAFETY

transportation system operators so they can better

manage the system. Quantifiable benefits from ITS PRrJV(

include:

• Reduced vehicle delays KLP1NG AGNC1ES

• Reduced crashes U MANAGE TRAFWIC

• Improved air quality

• Reduced fuel consumption

• Improved travel times

This technology is supported by communications systems, which include wireless radio Bluetooth

and Wi-Fi, microwave systems, and fiber optics. ITS and the supporting communication systems

allow agencies to monitor and manage the transportation system remotely.

WHEN TO CONSIDER INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS?

ITS solutions should be considered for a variety of reasons, but often depend on the context of a

specific problem. The following list of situations are times to consider implementing ITS:

• To maximize the use of existing infrastructure and improve the efficient movement of vehicles
before building more lanes

• To mitigate the impact of work zones, seasonal congestion, high crash locations, or adverse
weather conditions

• To increase traveler information for road users to make informed decisions about their travel
options including mode choice, travel time, and/or travel routing

• To increase the ability for agencies to monitor traffic conditions and make data-driven decisions
remotely

General ITS strategies are summarized below in Table 13 while individual ITS components are
summarized in Table 14.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 66

69



TABLE 13 GENERAL ITS STRATEGIES

ATE RY TOOL
POTENTIAL APPLICATIONS

;

C GO
TO CONSIDER FOR NEWPORT

. Traffic Surveillance • Monitor traffic on US 101

REGIONAL • Regional Traffic Management and US 20 to respond to

TRANSPORTATION • Transportation Demand Management
MANAGEMENT

. Roadside Lighting

• Railroad Grade Crossings

• Enhanced Traffic Signal Operations . Implement enhanced signal
operations to facilitateARTERIAL MANAGEMENT • Pedestrian and Bicycle Operations and travel on US 101 during

Safety peak summer travel

. Regional Incident and Emergency • Implement signal
Management preemption to facilitate

INCIDENT AND EMERGENCY
• Emergency Vehicle Routing and Signal travel to :nd from the

Preemption

• Regional Alert System

• Roadside Traveler Information • Monitor and notify public of
Dissemination parking availability

• Regional Traveler Information
TRAVELER INFORMATION

• Trip Planning and Routing

• Parking Availability Information and
Guidance

• Coordinate with ODOT for
REGIONAL OPERATIONS Yaquina Bay Bridge
COORDINATION AND • Multi-Agency Operations Coordination planning

and Planning
PLANNING • Coordinate with Lincoln

County Transit

• Advanced Transit Operations • Coordinate with coastal
Management transit agencies to support

• Regional Transit Fare Integration an integrated transit fare

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
• Transit Surveillance and Security

for travel on US 101

MANAGEMENT
• Multi-Modal Travel Coordination

• Real-time Transit Information

• Transit Signal Priority

• Road Weather Information Systems • Distribute information on
ROAD WEATHER

• Weather-Adaptive Traffic Management US 20 conditions for
OPERATIONS regional travel

• Winter Roadway Maintenance

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 67

70



ELECTRIC VEHICLES

Electric Vehicles (EVs) have been on the road for decades, but are becoming more economically

feasible as the production costs of batteries decline, the potential range increases, and vehicle fuel

prices increase. EVs rely on an electric engine to travel, eliminating tailpipe emissions, and can be

TABLE 13: GENERAL ITS STRATEGIES

c POTENTIAL APPLICATIONS
ATEGORY TOOL

TO CONSIDER FOR NEWPORT

. Maintenance and Construction • Provide real time work zone
MAINTENANCE AND Management management for major
CONSTRUCTION projects on US 101 and US

. Work Zone Management 20

REGIONAL DATA
Establish a local traffic

ARCHIVING
. Regional Transportation Data Archive count data archive

REGIONAL
• Install communications

COMMUNICATIONS • Communications Infrastructure
infrastructure at signals on

INFRASTRUCTURE Coordination
US 101 and US 20

MANAGEMENT

TABLE 14: EXAMPLES OF ITS ELEMENTS

ITS ELEMENT DESCRIPTION

Closed-circuit television that help agency operators detect and quickly respond to
TRAFFIC CAMERAS congestion, incidents, and other problems on the road. The camera images can be
(CCTV) broadcasted to the public, to the media, and to other emergency responders and

public agencies.

RWIS stations are installed along the roadway with instruments and equipment,
which provide weather and road surface condition observations. This information is
used to help with decisions on maintenance strategies and to provide information to
drivers. These stations may measure:

• Air and road surface temperature
ROAD/WEATHER

INFORMATION
• Barometric pressure

SYSTEMS (RWIS) • Humidity

• Wind speed and direction

• Precipitation

• Visibility

• Road surface condition (dry, wet, freezing, etc)

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 68

71



more sustainable depending on the source used to generate electricity. Although increases in
vehicle range have increased, EVs still require charging infrastructure for longer-distance trips or
for local residents who lack charging infrastructure at their homes.

To accommodate a future where electric vehicles are the majority of the vehicle fleet, additional
charging infrastructure will be required. Cities, electric utilities, regions, and states will need to
work together to create enough reliable electricity supply to fulfill the increased electrical demand.
Oregon HB 2180 allows city planning directors to require EV charging facilities as part of
commercial, multifamily residential, or mixed-use buildings with five or more dwelling units’3.
Currently, Newport has also budgeted funds to install EV charging at the Oregon Coast Aquarium,
City Hall, and the Earnest Bloch Memorial Wayside.

CONNECTED, AUTONOMOUS, AND SHARED VEHICLES

Emerging transportation technologies will shape streets, communities, and daily lives for
generations. Vehicles are becoming more connected, automated, and shared. While the timing of
when these advances will occur is uncertain, they will have significant impacts on how a community
plans, designs, builds, and uses the transportation system. Below are some important emerging
transportation technology terms and definitions that provide the basis for the impacts, policies and
action items discussed in the following sections.

• Connected vehicles (CVs) will enable
communications between vehicles, infrastructure,
and other road users. This means that vehicles will
be able to assist human drivers and prevent crashes
while making the system operate more smoothly.

• Automated vehicles (AV5) will, to varying degrees,
take over driving functions and allow travelers to
focus their attention on other matters. Vehicles with
combined automated functions like lane keeping and
adaptive cruise control exist today. In the future,
more sophisticated sensing and programming
technology will allow vehicles to operate with little to
no operator oversight.

• Shared vehicles (SV5) allow ride-hailing companies to offer customers access to vehicles
through cell phone applications. Ride-hailing applications give on-demand transportation with
comparable convenience to car ownership without the hassle of maintenance and parking.
Examples of shared vehicles include companies like Uber and Lyft.

Many of these technologies will not be exclusive of the others and it is important to think of the
host of implications that arise from the combination of them. These vehicles are referred to as

House Bill 2180. https ://oIis.oregonIegsIature.gov/Iiz/2O21R1/DownIoads/MeasureDocument/HB2 180/Enrolled

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 202 69

72



connected, automated, and shared (CAS) vehicles. These technologies can also be implemented in

coordination with existing EV technology.

IMPACTS OF CAS VEHICLES

CONGESTION AND ROAD CAPACITY

There are several competing forces that will unfold as connected, automated, and shared vehicles

are deployed. It is difficult to predict how these vehicles will influence congestion and road

capacity.

• AV5 wi’l provide a more relaxing or productive ride experience and people may have less
resistance to longer commutes.

• Shared AVs are projected to have lower fuel and operating costs, making them less expensive
on a per mile basis than private vehicle ownership. This may increase demand for auto-based
travel in the future.

• CV technology will allow vehicles to operate safely with closer following distance, less
unnecessary braking, and better coordinated traffic control. This will increase road capacity in
the long run when CVs and AVs comprise most of the public and private fleet of vehicles.

• In the near term, since AVs make up a fraction of the fleet of vehicles, road capacity could
decrease as AVs will operate more slowly and cautiously than regular vehicles.

• A new class of traffic — zero-occupant vehicles — will increase traffic congestion. These could
include AVs making deliveries or shared AVs circulating around the city and traveling to their
next rider.

• Roadways may need to be redesigned or better maintained to accommodate the needs of
automated driving systems. For instance, striping may need to be wider and more consistently
maintained to ensure the vehicle’s sensors can recognize it.

These points raise questions about the degree to which CASvehicles will impact road capacity and

congestion. The development and use of the technologies should be monitored closely.

TRANSIT

AVs could become cost competitive with transit and reduce transit ridership as riders prefer a more

convenient alternative. However, transit will remain the most efficient way to move high volumes

of people through constricted urban environments. AV5 will not eliminate congestion and as

discussed above, could exacerbate it — especially in the early phases of AV adoption. In addition,

shared AV5 may not serve all sectors of a community so many will still require access to transit to

meet their daily needs.

PARKING

Because AVs will be able to park themselves, travelers will elect to get dropped off at their

destination while their vehicle finds parking or its next passenger. Shared AV5 will have an even

NEWPORT Tsp UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 70

73



greater impact on parking because parking next to the destination will no longer be a priority for

the traveling public. This means that parking may be over-supplied in some areas and new

opportunities to reconfigure land use will emerge. Outstanding questions related to parking

include:

• How does vehicle ownership impact parking behavior?

• What portion of the AV fleet will be shared?

• How far out of the downtown area will AVs be able to park while remaining convenient and
readily available?

CURB SPACE

In addition to parking impacts, the ability to be dropped off at the destination will create more
potential for conflicts in the right-of-way between vehicles that are dropping passengers off or

picking them up, vehicles moving through traffic, and vehicles parked on the street. This issue is

already occurring in many urban areas with ride-hailing companies, where popular destinations are

experiencing significant double-parking issues.

AV5 will also be used to deliver packages and food. This may mean that delivery vehicles need to

be accommodated in new portions of the right-of-way. For instance, if the AV parks at the curb in a
neighborhood and smaller robots are used to deliver packages from door to door, new conflicts will
arise between vehicles, pedestrians, robots, and bicyclists.

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021 71

74



APPENDIX

CONTENTS

SECTION 1 BLUEPRINT FOR URBAN DESIGN: URBAN CONTEXT DESIGNATIONS

SECTION 2. GEOTECHNICAL GUIDANCE FOR AGATE BEACH

720 Sw WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 500, PORTLAND. OR 97205 5032413500 DKSASSOCIATES.COM

SHAPING A SMARTER TRANSPORTATION EXPERIENCE AN EMPLOYEE OWNED COMPANY

75



SECTION 1. BLUEPRINT FOR URBAN DESIGN: URBAN
CONTEXT DESIGNATIONS

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

76



2015 City of Newport
Comprehensive Plan Map

City Limits

Urban Growth Boundary

Comprehensive Plan Designation

Commercial

Industrial
Public

Low Density Residential

High Density Residential

Shoreland

Open Space
N

ri___________j1 Feet
C 2500 5000 10000

City efNowpert

77



SECTION 2. GEOTECHNICAL GUIDANCE FOR AGATE BEACH

NEWPORT TSP UPDATE • TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS • JUNE 2021

78



IIii Foundation Engineering, Inc.
tUIL Professional Geotechnical Services IkleIflorandurn

Date: October 11,2020

To: Carl Springer, P.E., P.T.P.
DKS Associates, Inc.

From: David Running, P.E., G.E.

Subject: Geotechnical Consultation for Agate Beach

Project: Newport Transportation System Plan Update
Project No.: 2191027-1 03

This memorandum provides a brief summary of the geotechnical challenges and
constraints related to siting and developing new transportation improvement
projects in Agate Beach.

BACKGROUND

The City of Newport and the Oregon Department of Transportation are currently
updating the City’s Transportation System Plan (TSP) to enhance safety, improve
access and mobility, and address future transportation needs. DKS Associates, Inc.
(DKS) is the design lead for the project. DKS retained Foundation Engineering to
provide geotechnical consultation. The current work is focused on evaluating
transportation improvement options for the Agate Beach neighborhood.

DISCUSSION

The geotechnical challenges in Agate Beach include mapped landslide and coastal
erosional hazards that will prohibit development of new transportation projects
adjacent to the ocean bluff along the west margin of the neighborhood. Figure 1
(attached) shows the current landslide hazard map for Agate Beach obtained from
the DOGAMI SLIDO 4.1 website (DOGAMI, 2020a). Figure 2 (attached) shows the
current coastal erosion hazard map for Agate Beach obtained from the DOGAMI
HAZVU website (DOGAMI, 2020b). Transportation improvements will need to be
setback from existing bluffs or areas of mapped landslide topography and focus on
the relatively flat terrain in the neighborhood to the east. The setback from the bluff
may be assumed to coincide with the eastern extent of the landslide terrain shown
on Figure 1, which also approximately corresponds to eastern boundary of the high
coastal erosion hazard area.

The potential presence of undocumented fill in the flat terrain within the Agate
Beach neighborhood is another geotechnical consideration. The flat terrain was
formerly rolling hills and ravines similar to the terrain in the undeveloped areas to
the east of Hwy. 101. The contrast between the developed and undeveloped terrain
can be seen in the LiDAR imaging shown on Figure 3 (attached). Like much of the
developed coastal areas in and around Newport, the current flat terrain in Agate

820 NW Cornell Avenue • Corvallis, Oregon 97330 • 541-757-7645
7857 SW Cirrus Drive, Bldg 24 • Beaverton, Oregon 97008 • 503-643-154179



Beach is the result of extensive site grading. Much of the historic site grading in
the coastal communities was not conducted in accordance with current engineering
standards. Poorly-placed fill and buried organics are common in former ravines
and low-lying areas. Therefore, even in the current flat terrain, potential geologic
hazards may exist that can result in settlement of roadways and pathways. Once
preferred alignments for the proposed transportation improvement projects are
identified, the subsurface conditions will need to be evaluated and geologic hazards
will need to be addressed, where they are encountered.

We trust this information satisfies your current needs. Please feel free to contact
us if you have questions or require additional information.

Newport Transportation System Plan Update October 11,2020
Geotechnical Consultation for Agate Beach 2. Proiect No.: 2191027-103
Newport, Oregon DKS Associates, Inc.

80



REFERENCES

DOGAMI, 2020a, SLIDO (Statewide Landslide Information Database for Oregon)
Viewer, SLIDO-4. 1: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries
(DOGAMI), website: https://gis.dogami.oregongov/maps/sIido/, accessed
October 11,2020.

DOGAMI, 2020b, Oregon HazVu: Statewide Geohazards Viewer: Oregon
Department of Geology and Mineral Industries (DOGAMI), website:
https://gis.dogami.oregon.gov/maps/hazvu/, accessed October 11, 2020.

Newport Transportation System Plan Update October 11, 2020
Geotechnical Consultation for Agate Beach 3. Project No.: 2191027-1 03
Newport, Oregon DKS Associates, Inc.81



1

Figure 1. Landslide Hazard Map for Agate Beach (DOGAMI, 2020a).

Figure 2. Coastal Erosion Hazard Map for Agate Beach (DOGAMI, 2020b).

Newport Transportation System Plan Update
Geotechnical Consultation for Agate Beach
Newport, Oregon

October 11,2020
Project No.: 2191027-1 03

DKS Associates, Inc.

) ,., -: ii

— CS

4.

82



Figure 3. LiDAR Image for Agate Beach (DOGAMI, 2020a).

Newport Transportation System Plan Update
Geotechnical Consultation for Agate Beach
Newport, Oregon

October 11,2020
5. Project No.: 2191027-103

4,

DKS Associates, Inc.83



City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Planning Commission/Commission Advisory Committee,_,v

From: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director\

Re: Final Scope of Work for HB 2003 Compliant Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing
Production Strategy (Informational)

Attached is the scope of work that we submitted requesting grant funds from the Department of
Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to complete a housing capacity analysis and
production strategy that complies with HB 2003. The budget has been increased from $75,000 to
$105,000. This was to ensure there would be sufficient funds to complete the constructability
assessment (Task 5). We discussed this element “conceptually” at your June 14, 2021 work
session. While this agenda item is listed as informational, I welcome any comments you have
regarding the scope of work.

DLCD received full funding from the legislature for their planning assistance grants and I have
every expectation that this project will be funded. DLCD is working with large city applicants that
have looming HB 2001 deadlines, and then they will turn their attention to cities that applied for
grants to address HB 2003 requirements. We should know in a few months whether or not the
grant is approved and, if it is approved, work would start in September and extend through 2022.

Page 1 of 1

Date: July 9,2021

Attachments

Mayor’s Letter of Support
DLCD Direct Grant Application/Scope of Work

84



169 SW COAST HWY

NEWPORT, OREGON 97365 www. newportoregongov

COAST GUARD cirr, USA MOMBETSU, JAPAN, SISTER CITY

July 7, 2021

Sean Edging, Housing Policy Analyst
Oregon Dept. of Land Conservation & Development
635 Capitol Street NE Suite 150
Salem, OR 97301

RE: City of Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Grant
Application

Dear Mr. Edging:

On behalf of the Newport City Council, please accept this letter of support for the Planning
Assistance Direct Grant Application submitted by our staff, requesting funds to complete
an HB 2003 compliant Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing Production Strategy.

Over the last decade, the City has worked proactively to incentivize the construction of
housing at price points affordable to members of our community. To do that successfully,
we must fully understand the housing needs of Newport residents and workers, and
strategies the City can employ to help facilitate the production of housing that meets those
needs. It has been a decade since the City last evaluated its housing in such a
comprehensive manner, and viable strategies recommended out of that effort have since
been implemented.

It is now timely for the City to take a fresh look at the community’s housing needs, and the
role it can play in helping to fulfill those needs. Increasing the supply of affordable and
workforce housing, including rentals, is a Council goal and undertaking this planning effort
(i.e. a new Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy) is a critical next step.
Match funds have been budgeted for fiscal year 202 1/2022, and the City is positioned to
move forward with the project if the grant application is approved.

Sincerely,

Dean H. Sawyer
Mayor

i 882)

‘PORJ
ih

OREGON

85



Department of Land Conservation and Development
AL

2021-23 PLANNING ASSISTANCE DIRECT GRANT APPLICATION

Please complete each section in the form below. Type or write requested information in the spaces
provided. Submit completed applications by June 30, 2021.

Date of Application: June 23, 2021

Applicant: City of Newport
(If council of governments, please also include the recipient jurisdiction name if applicable)

Street Address: 169 SW Coast Hwy
City: Newport
Zip: 97365

Contact name and title: Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Director

Contact e-mail address: d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

Contact phone number: 541-574-0626

Requested Service:

HB 2001 Code Assistance LI

___________________________________

Housing Needs Analysis (HNA) X

_____________________________________

Housing Production Strategy (HPS) X

_____________________________________

Housing Implementation Plan (Note: fl $
not an HNA or HPS)

Grant request amount (in whole dollars):

$
$65,000

$40,000

Total grant request amount (in whole dollars): $105,000

Local Contribution (recommended but not required): $26,250

Project Title: Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Project

Project summary: (Summarize the project and products in 50 words or fewer)

Update the City of Newport’s Housing Needs and Buildable Lands Inventory (aka Housing Capacity
Analysis) and develop a Housing Production Strategy in accordance with the requirements set forth in
ORS Chapter 197.290, ORS Chapter 197.296, and OAR Chapter 660, Division 8.

Project Description & Work Program

Please describe the proposed project, addressing each of the following in an attachment.
(See attached project description and work program)

Department of Land Conservation and Development
2021-2023 DLCD Planning Assistance Direct Grant Application Page 1 of 4

86



A. Goals and Objectives. The purpose of these projects are to assist affected jurisdictions in the
implementation of House Bill 2001 and House Bill 2003 [2019]. For each type of assistance offered,
the Project Goal is listed below:

House Bill 2001 — Middle Housing Code Update
The primary objective of this Project is to prepare a hearings-ready development code or
recommendations for comprehensive plan and development code amendments for cities to
comply with the provisions of House Bill 2001 (2019 Legislative Session) regarding middle
housing by June 30, 2022.

House Bill 2003 — Housing Needs Analysis
The primary objective of this Project is to prepare hearings-ready draft comprehensive plan
amendments to update the Housing Needs Analysis (pursuant to CR5 197.296) for the City.
City adoption of the amendments is not required prior to project completion on or before
June 30, 2023.

House Bill 2003 — Housing Production Strategy
The primary objective of this Project is to prepare a Housing Production Strategy as described
in ORS 197.290 and OAR 660-008-0050 that outlines how a city plans to promote the actual
production of needed housing identified in an adopted Housing Needs Analysis (HNA).

House Bill 2003 — Housing Implementation Plan
The primary objective of this project is to prepare a plan identifying or implementing the most
promising actions a local government can take to address its’ identified housing needs,
especially to meet subsided housing needs. This document is not identified in statute or
administrative rule, and it may encompass any housing-related issue that is neither a housing
needs analysis nor housing production strategy.

Please state any additional goals or overall purposes of the project. Describe particular
objective(s) the community hopes to accomplish. Please indicate whether this is a stand-alone
project or is part of a longer multi-year program. If it is the latter, describe any previous work
completed, subsequent phases and expected results, and how work beyond this project will
be funded.

B. Products and Outcomes. Clearly describe the product(s) and outcome(s) expected from the
proposed project. Briefly describe any anticipated significant effect the project would have on
development, livability, regulatory streamlining, and compliance with federal requirements,
socioeconomic gains, and other relevant factors.

C. Work Program, Timeline & Payment. A sample work program is provided in a separate attachment
for your convenience and to outline the fundamental steps necessary to complete the work products
listed above. Local governments should review this sample to develop a comprehensive work
program that best fits their community. Per Statewide Planning Goal 1, Public Involvement, public
engagement is a necessary component of any planning process, but may be adjusted by the local
government. Please also provide a preliminary schedule for the project, with identified target

Department of Land Conservation and Development
2021-2023 DLCD Planning Assistance Direct Grant Application Page 2 of 4

87



completion dates for each task. If other changes are necessary, please consult with your Regional
Representative.

Please note that applicants are expected to submit detailed proposals that specify the work tasks,
products, and timelines unique to their proposal. The attached sample work programs are not
complete and will require refinement to suit specific proposals. Priority will be given to proposals that
provide well-defined tasks, products, and timelines.

1. Tasks and Products: List and describe the major tasks and subtasks, with:

• The title of the task
• Steps to complete task
• The interim and final products for each task

2. Timeline: List all dates for the project including tentative start date after the contract is
signed, task completion dates, and project completion date. Please note that this project must
be completed by the end of the biennium —June 30, 2023. If the project is part of a multi-year
program, provide an overview of the expected timelines in sequence of expected start dates
and completion date for each phase and describe subsequent phases to be completed.

3. Payment Schedule: Develop a requested payment schedule showing amount of interim and
final payments. Include the products that will be provided with each payment request —

contracts should be “deliverables-based.” The payment schedule should be no more frequent
than once every two months.

0. Evaluation Criteria. Include a statement in the narrative that addresses the program priorities
and evaluation criteria presented in the application instructions (“Eligible Projects and Evaluation
Criteria”).

E. Project Partners. List any other public or private entities that will participate in the project,
including federal and state agencies, council of governments, city and county governments, and
special districts. Briefly describe the role of each (e.g., will perform work under the grant; will
advise; will contribute information or services, etc.).

F. Advisory Committees. List any advisory committee or other committees that will participate in
the project to satisfy the local citizen involvement program.

G. Cost-Sharing and Local Contribution. DLCD funds may comprise a portion of overall project costs;
if so, please identify sources and amounts of other funds or services that will contribute to the
project’s success. Cost-sharing (match) is not required.

Will a consultant be retained to assist in completing grant products? Yes No LI

Will you be utilizing this funding to dedicate your own staff resources in completing grant
products? Yes LI No

Department of Land Conservation and Development
2021-2023 DLCD Planning Assistance Direct Grant Application Page 3 of 4

88



Local Official Support

The application must include a resolution or letter from the governing body of the city or county
demonstrating support for the project. If the applicant is a council of governments on behalf of a city,
a letter or resolution from the city council supporting the application must be included. The
application will not be complete if it does not include this item. The letter of support may be received
by DLCD after the application submittal deadline, but it must be received before a grant is awarded.

Product Request Summary
Product Grant Request Local Contribution Total Budget

Housing capacity
$ 48,750 $ 16,250 $ 65,000Analysis

Housing Production
$ 30,000 $ 10,000 $ 40,000Strategy

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $

TOTAL $ 78,750 $ 26,250 $ 105,000

Submit your application with all supplemental information to:

Gordon Howard, community Services Division Manager

E-mail: DLCD.GFGrant@state.or.us

Please note that due to public health concerns, we will not be accepting applications by mail. If your
jurisdiction requires special accommodations, please reach out to a Grant Program Contact as soon as

possible to make arrangements.

If you have questions about the Housing Planning program or projects funded by this round of
planning assistance, please contact:

Sean Edging, Housing Policy Analyst
sean.edging@state.or.us or (971) 375-5362

If you have questions about the Grant Program or application process, please contact:

Angela Williamson, Grants and Periodic Review Administrative Specialist
angela.williamson@state.or.us or (971) 345-1987

APPLICATION DEADLINE: June 30, 2021

Department of Land Conservation and Development
2021-2023 DLCD Planning Assistance Direct Grant Application Page 4 of 4

89



Scope of Work for Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Project

Goals and Objectives:

The City of Newport is seeking grant funding to secure the services of a consultant(s) to update its
Housing Needs and Buildable Lands Inventory (aka Housing Capacity Analysis), and to develop a
newly required Housing Production Strategy. Both of these planning documents will be developed
in accordance with applicable statutes and administrative rules.

Being a small rural community, Newport and its partners engaged in the provision of housing and
related services operate with limited capacity relative to staffing, technical expertise, and funding.
With that in mind, our goal is to complete both the Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing
Production Strategy as part of a single planning effort and a work program has been developed to
achieve that objective.

One of the City’s goals as part of this process is to identify developable lands within its corporate
limits that can reasonably be expected to produce needed housing, considering land values,
entitlements, utilities, construction costs, etc. This will inform how the City could prioritize its
infrastructure investments or adjust its infrastructure requirements to efficiently support areas that
are most likely to produce needed housing. A concept for how this analysis would be carried out is
set out in Task 5 of the work program (below).

Products and Outcomes:

The principal products will be a Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing Production Strategy that
satisfy statutory and administrative rule requirements. There are a number of interim deliverables
that will inform the development of these documents, each of which is identified specifically in the
work program.

Work Program:

Task 1: Project Kick-Off

Timeline: Sept 2021

The purpose of the project kick-off is for Consultant to become familiar with local conditions and with
City’s planning documents, for the parties to confirm the objectives of the project and refine the
project schedule, and for the City to prepare for the Project. Consultant will contact the City to
arrange a date for a site visit, where they will meet with a roundtable of city policymakers and housing
stakeholders to learn about the community’s housing needs and issues; tour the City to familiarize
themselves with the type, location, and condition of Newport’s housing stock and areas suitable for
future housing; and wrap up the trip by meeting with city staff to confirm project expectations and
data needs. Consultant will take information gleaned from this initial meeting to refine the project
scope of work and develop a proposed schedule outlining actions required for the completion of all
tasks. City will provide Consultant with relevant background documents, housing, and GIS data.
This can be done in advance of, or after the kick-off meeting, depending upon Consultants
preference.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 1 of 10

90



Task 1 Consultant Deliverables:
• Site reconnaissance meeting notes summarizing results of the roundtable discussion, field

work, and photographs for reference and future work product
• Refined scope of work and project schedule

Task 1 City Deliverables:
• Background documents, including informational materials and relevant sections of the City’s

Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, Municipal Code, SDC Methodology, and budget
related to housing and the City’s housing incentive programs

• Geospatial data layers in shapefile or equivalent format including, tax lots, comprehensive
plan designations, UGB, city limits, zoning, aerial imagery, building footprints, utilities, streets,
terrain, hazard areas, wetlands, shoreland resources, natural areas, short-term rental
data/overlay, design districts, and prior buildable land data

• Attend and facilitate site visit with consultants
• Coordinate policymaker/stakeholder roundtable session

Task 2: Education, Outreach, and Engagement

Timeline: Oct 2021 - Nov 2022

Consultant will develop informational materials in English and Spanish to help educate the
community about the goals and objectives of the project, including a description of the basic elements
of a Housing Capacity Analysis (HCA) and Housing Production Strategy (HPS) and how this planning
effort and resulting product could help improve the availability of needed housing within the
community. Additionally, Consultants will develop a Public Engagement Plan identifying strategies
that are to be pursued through the course of the project to engage housing consumers, including
direct outreach to individuals through interviews, focus groups, or other means; contacting
community-based organizations and service providers to connect with those they serve; and hosting
events (virtual or in-person). City will provide Consultant with a list of groups and organizations that
need to be engaged through the course of the project, who in turn may reach out to other interested
parties. Engagement efforts will prioritize underrepresented communities within the City, including
renters, low-income households, Hispanic/Latinx residents, other racial and ethnic minorities and
immigrant or refugee communities, veterans, people with disabilities, seniors, agricultural workers,
and formerly and currently homeless people. The engagement efforts are to build upon the City’s
previous housing related outreach and be coordinated with the event(s) required under HB4006 for
severely rent burdened communities.

Consultant will conduct Project Advisory Committee (PAC) Meeting No. 1 to provide an overview of
the project, solicit feedback on the draft public engagement plan, discuss and confirm desired
outcomes, and review the project schedule. City will recruit and appoint the advisory committee
members. City will also host a project webpage with Consultant being responsible for producing
informational materials in a format suitable for use as website content and handouts. Through the
course of the project, Consultant will be expected to prepare outreach materials, identifying
appropriate topics, methods of soliciting input and developing survey questions. City staff will support
Consultant, reviewing and providing feedback on materials, coordinating meetings and events, and
advertising outreach opportunities. City staff will prepare minutes for all PAC meetings, with
Consultant being responsible for drafting summaries of surveys, focus group discussions, and other
engagement opportunities.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 2 of 10

91



Task 2 Consultant Deliverables:
• Education/outreach materials for use in handouts and as website content in English and

Spanish
• Public engagement plan (with refined project schedule incorporating outreach opportunities)
• Content for outreach sessions, including outlines of suggested survey or focus group

questions and subject matter for meetings

Task 2 City Deliverables:
• List of existing groups and organizations for engagement
• Advisory committee appointments and roster
• Preparation of project webpage
• Meeting advertisements, notices, agendas, and minutes

Payment No. 1 in the amount of $5,000, payable upon delivery of the site reconnaissance meeting
notes and public engagement plan identified in Tasks 1 and 2.

Task 3: Housing Needs Projection

Timeline: Oct 2021 - Jan 2022

Consultant will prepare a draft housing needs projection consistent with OAR Chapter 660, divisions
7 or 8, as applicable. The housing needs projection will be used to determine the City’s residential
land need in Task 6 and is a baseline set of data that the Consultant will build upon to contextualize
current and future housing needs for the Housing Production Strategy (H PS), considering population
and market trends. Analysis of contextualized housing needs will include:

- Socio-economic and demographic trends of a jurisdiction’s population, disaggregated by race
to the extent possible with available data;

- Market conditions affecting the provision of needed housing, including demand for seasonal
housing;

- Existing and expected barriers to the development of needed housing;
- Housing need for those experiencing homelessness, using the best available data;
- Percentage of Rent Burdened Households;
- Housing by Tenure (owner vs renter);
- Percentage of housing stock that is market rate vs. subsidized; and
- Units that are in the development pipeline by housing type.

A draft of the housing needs projection and a framework outlining the socio-economic and
demographic data needed to contextualize housing need will be developed by Consultants. Analysis
will be vetted with, and draw upon, information gathered through engagement with housing
consumers, including underrepresented communities, before being presented at PAC Meeting No.
2. Comments from the PAC members will be addressed by Consultant, and a draft “Contextualized
Housing Needs Memorandum” will be developed as a deliverable (which will later become a section
of the HPS).

City will review and provide Consultant feedback on the housing needs projection and the
contextualization of housing needs as the work product is being developed, will assist with
coordinating and facilitating outreach and engagement, and will provide staff support for PAC
Meetings No. 2 and 3, including preparation of meeting notices, agendas, and minutes. Consultant

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 3 of 10

92



will coordinate with City on meeting arrangements and facilitate the advisory committee meetings.
The advisory committee may consider more than one deliverable at a meeting.

Task 3 Consuftant Deilverables:
• Presentation materials to explain preliminary analyses and findings of the housing needs

projection, including contextualization of housing needs, for review by the PAC, public, and
interest groups (PAC Meeting No. 2)

• Draft housing needs projection
• Contextualized housing needs memorandum

Task 3 City Deliverables:
• Meeting advertisements, notices, agendas, and minutes

Task 4: Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI)

Timeline: Oct 2021 - Feb 2022

Consultant will prepare a draft inventory of buildable land consistent with OAR Chapter 660, Division
8. The BLI will be used to determine the City’s residential land sufficiency in Task 6. The BLI will be
developed based on discussion with the PAC at one or more committee meetings.

City will schedule and provide notice and an agenda for one advisory committee meeting to review
the draft BLI product. Consultant will coordinate with City on meeting arrangements and facilitate the
advisory committee meetings. The advisory committee may consider more than one deliverable at a
meeting.

Task 4 Consultant Deliverables:
• Draft BLI
• Presentation materials to explain preliminary analyses and findings to the advisory

committee, the public, and interest groups (PAC Meeting No. 3)
• Geospatial data layer containing the results of the BLI analysis

Task 4 City Deliverables:
• Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes

Payment No. 2 in the amount of $20,000, payable upon delivery of the contextualized housing needs
memorandum and Draft BLI identified in Tasks 3 and 4.

Task 5: Housing Constructability Assessment

Timeline: Jan 2022 - Apr 2022

Considering the outcomes of Tasks 3 and 4, City will identify areas that are anticipated to be very
costly to serve, those that have no particular infrastructure service issues, and those with moderate
infrastructure needs. The constructability analysis will focus on areas with moderate infrastructure
needs, to help inform policymakers as to how they might best invest the City’s limited infrastructure
funds to efficiently support areas that are most likely to produce needed housing.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 4 of 10

93



Up to twelve (12) subareas will be defined out of the group of parcels with moderate infrastructure
needs. Each subarea will consist of one or more parcels that have similar infrastructure and site
development costs to other parcels in the same subarea. Consultant will analyze four (4) to six (6)
housing “prototypes” (market-realistic development examples) that reflect housing types and
densities that are allowed by zoning and align with market realities in Newport. Examples could
include small-lot detached homes, large-lot detached homes, townhouses, and low-rise garden
apartments. For each housing prototype, the Consultant will evaluate how much that type of housing
development could absorb in combined land and infrastructure costs on a per unit basis, given
estimated market pricing and construction costs. Consultant will estimate the total amount that
development within a subarea could absorb in land and infrastructure costs based on the estimated
zoned capacity for the subarea and the per-unit amount that the relevant housing types can absorb,
then compare this to the total infrastructure costs to serve the area that are assumed to be a
developer responsibility. Estimates of the zoned capacity of each subarea based on current
development regulations and typical right-of-way and stormwater needs, including what type and
density of housing is allowed. Where multiple types or differing densities are allowed, City will provide
information suggesting an assumed mix based on past trends in the same zone or citywide.
Consultant will synthesize the above information intro a housing constructability assessment
memorandum. Assumptions and results of the housing constructability assessment will be vetted
with the PAC at one or more committee meetings.

City will schedule and provide notice and an agenda for one advisory committee meeting to review
the housing constructability assessment. Consultant will coordinate with City on meeting
arrangements and facilitate the advisory committee meetings. The advisory committee may consider
more than one deliverable at a meeting.

Task 5 Consultant Deliverables:
• Presentation materials to explain preliminary analyses and findings to the advisory

committee, the public, and interest groups (PAC Meeting No. 4)
• Draft housing constructability assessment
• Geospatial data layer containing the results of the subarea analysis

Task 5 City Deliverable:
• Memo summarizing infrastructure costs required to serve each subarea, and the share of

those costs that will be developer responsibility (excluding the amount that will be paid
through SDC5).

• Contact information for local residential contractors/builders/developers with experience
building in Newport who can provide estimates for local construction and site preparation
costs.

• Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes

Payment No. 3 in the amount of $20,000, payable upon delivery of the draft housing constructability
assessment and geospatial data layer containing the results of the sub-area analysis identified in
Task 5.

Task 6: Residential Land Needs Analysis (RLNA)

Timeline: Feb 2022 - Apr 2022

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 5 of 10

94



Based on the outcomes of Tasks 3 and 4, Consultant will prepare a draft RLNA that addresses how
much land and what zoning the City needs to accommodate its housing need, comparing the demand
and supply provided in the deliverables produced in Tasks 3 and 4. The RLNA will be developed
based on discussions with the PAC at one or more committee meetings.

If the analysis shows that the housing needs cannot be accommodated by the City’s existing
comprehensive plan, the RLNA will be developed concurrently with Task 6 in order to consider
accommodating housing needs through changes to the comprehensive plan and land use
regulations as required by OAR chapter 660, divisions 8 and 24.1

City will schedule and provide notice and an agenda for one advisory committee meeting to review
the draft RLNA product. Consultant will coordinate with City on meeting arrangements and facilitate
the advisory committee meetings. The PAC may consider more than one deliverable at a meeting.

Task 6 Consultant Deliverables:
• Draft RLNA
• Presentation materials to introduce preliminary residential land need analyses and findings

to the advisory committee, the public, and interest groups (PAC Meeting No. 5)

Task 6 City Deilverable:
• Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes

Task 7: Measures to Accommodate Needed Housing

Timeline: Mar 2022 - May 2022

Consultant will identify options for changes to the City’s comprehensive plan and land use
regulations to address housing and residential land needs determined in previous tasks. This task
may be completed concurrently with Task 6, and will identify strategies for how the City might
prioritize its infrastructure investments or adjust its requirements to efficiently support areas that are
most likely to produce needed housing considering results of Task 5.

City will schedule and provide notice and an agenda for one or two advisory committee meeting to
review the housing-accommodation product. Consultant will coordinate with City on meeting
arrangements and facilitate the advisory committee meetings. The advisory committee may
consider more than one deliverable at a meeting.

Task 7 Consuftant Deliverables:
• Options for changes to City’s comprehensive plan and land use regulations to address

housing and residential land needs
• Presentation materials to introduce housing accommodation recommendations to the PAC,

the public, and interest groups (PAC Meeting No. 6)
• Final draft of the RLNA

1 Cities should note that if the analysis finds that all identified housing needs cannot be met by the existing Comprehensive
Plan, the city will need to adopt Comprehensive Plan amendments necessary to meet all identified needs concurrently with
adoption of the HCA, per OAR 660-024-0050(4).

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 6 of 10

95



Task 7 City Deilverables:
Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes

Payment No. 4 in the amount of $20,000, payable upon delivery of the final draft of the RLNA
identified in Task 7.

Task 8: Strategies to Accommodate Future Housing Need (Housing Production Strategy)

Timeline: Mar 2022 - Aug 2022

Consultant will review and provide input to the City on a City-provided summary of measures already
adopted by the City that promote the development of needed housing, and existing practices that
affirmatively further fair housing, link housing to transportation, provide access in Opportunity Areas,
address equitable distribution of services, and create opportunities for rental housing and
homeownership as those terms and requirements are defined in the final rules and state guidance
for the Housing Production Strategy (HPS). The City will identify and provide all available information
about existing relevant measures.

For the strategies that are recommended for inclusion in the City’s HPS, Consultant will produce the
following for each strategy, based on Consultant’s evaluation, input from staff, and feedback
gathered through outreach and engagement:
- A description of the strategy;
- Identified housing need being fulfilled (tenure and income) and analysis of the income and

demographic populations that will receive benefit and/or burden from the strategy, including low-
income communities, communities of color, and other communities that have been discriminated
against, according to fair housing laws;

- Approximate magnitude of impact, including (where possible/applicable) an estimate of the
number of housing units that may be created, and the time frame over which the strategy is
expected to impact needed housing;

- Timeline for adoption and implementation;
- Actions necessary for the local government and other stakeholders to take in order to implement

the strategy; and
- Opportunities, constraints, or negative externalities associated with adoption of the strategy.

Consultants analysis will be informed by the recommendations contained in the final draft HCA, and
is to be developed in consultation with the PAC before being synthesized into a draft HPS. The draft
HPS will summarize existing measures, previously identified strategies, and additional strategies for
consideration to address contextualized housing needs; provide additional evaluation and refinement
of selected strategies; and summarize up to eight (8) documented discussions with housing
producers and/or service providers to seek input on the potential housing strategies.

More than one PAC meeting will be needed to complete this task. One approach would be to
introduce the concept of a Housing Production Strategy as part of PAC Meeting No. 6. A more
thorough strategy discussion would then occur at PAC Meeting No. 7, and it is at this time that the
final draft HCA would be available to the group. It is possible that PAC members will want additional
information about certain strategies, which would be presented at PAC Meeting No. 8. This would
also be the meeting where a set of preferred strategies are identified for inclusion in the HPS.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 7 of 10

96



City will schedule and provide notice and an agenda for one advisory committee meeting to review
the draft HPS product. Consultant will coordinate with City on meeting arrangements and facilitate
the advisory committee meetings. The PAC may consider more than one deliverable at a meeting.

City will schedule one public workshop or open house to present draft residential land need and
housing accommodation data, findings, and recommendations (collectively, the draft HCA) and the
key strategies outlined in the draft HPS. This could occur before or after PAC Meeting No. 8. City
will solicit input from the public on the draft deliverables. Consultant will coordinate with City on
meeting arrangements and facilitate the public meeting(s).

Task 8 Consultant Deliverables:
• Presentation materials to introduce strategies recommended for inclusion in the City’s HPS

for review by the PAC, the public, and interest groups (PAC Meetings No. 7 and 8)
• Draft Housing Production Strategy
• Public workshop presentation materials outlining key recommendations

Task 8 City Deliverable:

• Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes (including summary of workshop attendance and
feed back)

Payment No. 5 in the amount of $20,000, payable upon delivery of the draft Housing Production
Strategy identified in Task 8.

Task 9: Final HCA and HPS Report

Timeline: May 2022 - Oct 2022

Consultant will prepare final drafts of the Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing Production
Strategy. The final draft of the HCA will include an executive summary of the Newport’s existing
housing stock, projected housing needs, and measures to accommodate those needs in a format
suitable for replacing the existing housing element of Newport Comprehensive Plan. This will include
an updated set of housing goals, policies, and implementation measures with clear linkages between
these measures and the HPS. The RLNA and BLI are to be included as appendices.

The final HPS report is to incorporate the results of the contextualized housing needs memorandum,
summaries of existing measures and final proposed strategies from the draft HPS (Task 8); and an
explanation of how the City’s existing measures and final proposed strategies help to achieve fair
and equitable housing outcomes, affirmatively further fair housing, and overcome discriminatory
housing practices and racial segregation. The final HPS report shall conclude with a qualitative
assessment of how the strategies collectively address the contextualized housing needs identified in
the HCA and HPS; discussion how the proposed actions, taken collectively, will increase housing
options for population groups experiencing a current or projected disproportionate housing need;
speak to how the City’s existing measures and proposed strategies will affirmatively further fair
housing, link housing to transportation, provide access to Opportunity Areas, address needs for
people facing homelessness and equitable distribution of services, create opportunities for rental
housing and homeownership, and mitigate vulnerabilities to displacement and housing instability;
outline a rationale for any identified needs not otherwise addressed above; and outline the city’s plan
for monitoring progress on the housing production strategies.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 8 of 10

97



Following review by staff and revisions as needed, Consultant will produce a public review draft of
the Final HCA and HPS for review and comment by the PAC, Planning Commission, City Council,
and interested parties. Consultant will summarize PAC comments on the draft (if addressing
comments would require major updates) or make minor updates to the draft following the PAC
review. Following public review and comment, Consultant will produce a Final copy of the HCA and
HPS document.

Task 9 Consultant Deliverables:
• Public Review Draft of the HCA and HPS
• Agenda and presentation/meeting materials for PAC Meeting No. 9
• Presentation to Planning Commission
• Presentation to City Council
• Final copy of the HCA and HPS

Task 9 City Deilverable:
• Meeting notices, agendas, and minutes

Task 10: Adoption

Timeline: Nov 2022 (initiate)

City will initiate the formal legislative process to adopt the Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing
Production Strategy. Consultant will prepare presentation materials addressing the major
components of the HCA and HPS for City staff’s use during the adoption process.

Task 10 Consultant Dellverable:
• Presentation materials to explain final draft updates to the hearings bodies

Task 10 City Deliverable:
• A set of official minutes from the meeting where the legislative process is initiated

Payment No. 6 (final payment) in the amount of $20,000, payable upon delivery of the final copy of
the HCA and HPS and presentation materials to hearing bodies, as identified in Tasks 9 and 10. City
does not anticipate needing Consultants assistance during the hearing adoption process. Notice to
DLCD would be provided as required by state law and a copy of the adopted ordinance would be
provided to the state agency at the end of the adoption process.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 9 of 10

98



Graphic Timeline:

2021 2022
Task Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov

1. Project Kickoff *

2. Education & Outreach • * * * * *

3. Housing Needs Projection

4. Buildable Lands Inventory

5. Constructability Assessment

6. Res. Land Needs Analysis

7. Needed Housing Measures A

8. Future Housing Needs Strat. • •

9. Final HCA & HPS • A

10. Adoption

* Site Reconnaissance A Draft HCA I HPS
• Project Advisory Committee Meeting • Final Work Product
* Public Engagement Activities • Initiate Legislative Hearings Process

Evaluation Criteria:

This project directly addresses the HB 2003 project evaluation criteria as outlined in the work
program The City of Newport is in the first tier of communities with upcoming Housing Capacity
Analysis deadlines per OAR 660-008-0045.

Project Partners:

Lincoln County Government, Lincoln County School District, Cascades West Council of
Governments, Confederated Tribes of the Siletz, Economic Development Alliance of Lincoln County,
Yaquina Bay Economic Foundation, Port of Newport, Community Services Consortium, Housing
Authority of Lincoln County, Samaritan House and My Sisters Place (transitional housing),
C.H.A.N.C.E., Lincoln County (recovery), Centro de Ayuda, and Pacific Communities Health District.
These entities will advise and contribute information or services to help inform the end product;
however, none are expected to perform work under the grant.

Advisory Committees:

The Newport Vision 2040 Advisory Committee, Newport Planning Commission, and City Council will
participate, in addition to the Project Advisory Committee that will be formed to assist with the project.

Cost Sharing and Local Contribution:

The City of Newport is prepared to cover 25% of the project cost as cash match, and will contribute
“in-kind” services (e.g. staff time, notice/advertising expenses, etc.), as needed, to ensure that the
projects is adequately resourced. Match funds are budgeted for FY 21/22.

Newport Housing Capacity Analysis and Production Strategy Page 10 of 10

99



Work SessionApril 12, 2021

• Yaquina Bay Estuary Management Plan Update (Presentation/Discussion)
• Review Initial Draft of Code Amendments Related to Operation of Food Trucks & Food Carts
• KPFF Assessment of Beach Accesses for Resiliency Retrofit (Informational) 

Regular SessionApril 12, 2021

• Hearing on File 4-Z-20  Implementing HB 2001 Duplex, Townhouse, and Cottage Cluster Standards 

Regular SessionApril 26, 2021

• File 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21, Design Review Hearing on Hallmark’s Whaler Motel Expansion
• File 1-NCU-21, Expansion of Non-Conforming Mobile Home Park from 14 to 16 Spaces (4263 S Coast Hwy)
• File 2-NCU-21, Expansion of Non-Conforming Natural Gas Facility (1702 SE Bay Blvd)

Special Joint Commission/City Council Work Session May 3, 2021

• Transportation System Plan Draft Solutions Discussion, 2nd Round Public Outreach – Part 1

Regular SessionMay 10, 2021

• Final Order/Findings, Expansion of Non-Conf. Mobile Home Park from 14 to 16 Spaces (4263 S Coast Hwy)
• Final Order/Findings, Expansion of Non-Conforming Natural Gas Facility (1702 SE Bay Blvd)

Special Joint Commission/City Council Work SessionMay 17, 2021

• Transportation System Plan Draft Solutions Discussion, 2nd Round Public Outreach – Part 2

Work SessionMay 24, 2021

• Status Update SB / US 101 Corridor Refinement Plan
• Review DLCD/City Evaluation of Beach Access Points Prioritized for Resiliency Retrofit 
• Review of Draft Code Amendments Related to Food Trucks & Carts 

Regular SessionMay 24, 2021

• Deliberations and Decision on File 1-NB-21/2-CUP-21, Design Review Hearing on Hallmark’s Whaler Motel 
Expansion (Final Order and Findings will be available for potential adoption)

• File 4-CUP-21, Public Hearing for an Historic Themed Photo Studio in the W-2 Zone (342 SW Bay Blvd)
• Initiate Legislative Process to Amend the Newport Zoning Ordinance Related to Food Cart

Work SessionJune 14, 2021

• Review and Provide Feedback on SB / US 101 Corridor Refinement Plan Survey Questions
• Alternate Design Standards for Low Volume Local Roads (Discussion)
• Review Scope of Work for HB 2003 Compliant Housing Capacity Analysis and Housing Production Strategy 

(App Due 6/30/21)

Work Session/Regular Session CancelledJune 28, 2021

Tentative Planning Commission Work Program 
(Scheduling and timing of agenda items is subject to change)

100



Work SessionJuly 12, 2021
• Review TSP Tech Memo #10 (Transportation Standards)
• Submitted SOW for DLCD Housing Capacity Analysis & Housing Production Strategy Grant (Informational)

Regular SessionJuly 12, 2021
• File No. 1-Z-21, Public Hearing on Food Truck and Food Cart Amendments

Work SessionJuly 26, 2021
• Review TSP Tech Memo #8 (Solutions Evaluation)
• SB / US 101 Commercial Industrial Land Use Code Audit Desired Outcomes (JET Planning to Attend)
• Draft Content from JLA/DKS for TSP Online Open House Preference/Prioritization Survey
• Review Draft TGM Grant Application to Update Land Use Regulations along US 101/20 Corridor and Develop 

Business Façade Improvement Program to Complement TSP Recommendations (App Due 7/30/21)

Regular Session (Cancelled)July 26, 2021

Work SessionAugust 9, 2021
• Review TSP Tech Memo #11 (Alternate Mobility Standard)
• Land Use, Building, and Urban Renewal Bill Summary from 2021 Legislative Session
• Results Memo from SB / US 101  Opportunities and Constraints Online Survey/Focus Groups (Informational)

Regular SessionAugust 9, 2021
• File PD-21, Amendment to Wilder PD Related to Permissible Street Cross-Sections (Firm)

Work SessionAugust 23, 2021
• Review TSP Memo #12 (Draft Ordinances Amending Comp Plan Policies and NMC Chapters 13 and 14)
• Draft Recommendation for Distribution of Affordable Housing CET Funds (from Ad-Hoc Work Group) 
• Project Concepts with Cost Estimates for Final SB URA Investments and Draft Prioritization Survey

Regular SessionAugust 23, 2021
• TBD

Work SessionSeptember 13, 2021
• Discuss Scope of Amendments to NMC 14.14 Parking, to Support Bayfront Permit/Meter Rollout
• Results from TSP Online Open House Preference/Prioritization Survey and Related Outreach

Regular SessionSeptember 13, 2021
• TBD

Special Joint City Council/Planning Commission Work SessionSeptember 21, 2021
• Review Draft TSP Update (Incorporating all Tech Memos and Outreach Feedback)

Work SessionSeptember 27, 2021
• Review Draft Set of Recommended Commercial/Industrial Code Revisions (from JET Planning Audit)
• Second Review of Consolidated TSP Update

Regular SessionSeptember 27, 2021
• Initiate Legislative Process for TSP Update (Project Priorities, Comp Plan Policies, Code Amendments)

Tentative Planning Commission Work Program 
(Scheduling and timing of agenda items is subject to change)

101


	Planning Commission Work Session Agenda
	2018-4597 - Memorandum
	2018-4597 - Newport Transportation System Plan Update - Transportation Standards (Tech Memo #10)
	2018-4599 - Memorandum
	2018-4599 - Mayor’s Letter of Support
	2018-4599 - DLCD Direct Grant Application/Scope of Work
	2018-4601 - PC Work Program 7-08-21

